
                          
 

 PONTIAC CITY COUNCIL 
          STUDY SESSION 

                                                                                     January 19, 2017 
   6:00 p.m. 

     167th  Session of the 9th Council 
 

It is this Council’s mission “To serve the citizens of Pontiac by committing to help provide an enhanced quality of life for 
its residents, fostering the vision of a family-friendly community that is a great place to live, work and play.” 

 
Call to order 

Roll Call    

Authorization for excused absences for councilmembers  

Public Comment  

AGENDA ITEMS FOR CITY COUNCIL CONSIDERATION 

1. Request for approval of bid by Redigan Outdoor Services.  
2. Request for approval of as-needed Engineering Services 
3. Request for approval of amendment of TIFA district boundaries. 
4. Discussion of NO HAZ Agreement.  

Adjournment 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

TO: Pontiac City Council I Transition Advisory Board 

FROM: Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
John V. Balint, City Engineer 

DATE: January 17, 2017 

RE: As-Needed Engineering Services 

The Engineering Division has prepared and advertised a request for qualifications 
for As-Needed Engineering Services. Qualifications were accepted on October 
24, 2016 at 2:00 PM in the office of the City Clerk and publically opened at that 
time. 

There were twelve respondents to the RFQ. They were: 
• Alfred Benesch and Company 
• Anderson, Eckstein and Westrick, Inc. 
• Giffels Webster Engineers 
• Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 
• John and Anderson, Inc. 
• The Mannik and Smith Group, Inc. 
• Nowak and Fraus Engineers 
• NTH Consultants 
• OHM Advisors 
• William J. Popp Co., LLC 
• Rowe Professional Services Company 
• Spalding DeDecker 

A three-member review panel comprised of the Director of the Department of 
Public Works, the Purchasing Agent and the City Engineer individually reviewed 
the responses and awarded points based on the responses. A firm was able to 
obtain as many as 1 00 points from each evaluator in the following categories in 
the individual service categories of Plan Review, Preliminary and Final 
Engineering, Surveying, Construction Engineering, Storm Water Management, 
Bridge Design and Inspection, Architecture, Environmental: 

• Understanding of Service-20 points 
• Qualifications of Team-50 points 
• Past Performance-3D points 

Due to the wide variety of expertise needed, we are looking to have multiple 
consultants under contract as not any one consultant performs or are experts in all 
aspects of civil engineering. This will not increase our budget. No consultant will 



have a guaranteed or contract dollar amount. Projects will be assigned to the 
consultant based on expertise and cost. 

Based on the review, and the individual tabulation sheet attached, the Department 
of Public Works, Engineering Division is recommending that the following 
consultants for as-needed contracts: 

1. Hubbell, Roth and Clark, Inc. 
2. Alfred Benesch and Company 
3. Nowak and Fraus 
4. Anderson Eckstein and Westrick 
5. NTH Consultants 

It is the recommendation of the Department of Public Works that the City accept 
this tabulation and authorize the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to enter into as-needed 
engineering contracts with the above mentioned consultants. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED, 

JVB 

attachments 

The City of Pontiac has advertised and received responses to a request 
for qualifications for As-Needed Engineering Services on October 24, 
2016 and publically opened bids, and; 

a review panel has scored the responses, and; 

The diverse types of work and project in the next few years will 
necessitate multiple firms with varied expertise, and; 

after scoring, the most qualified consultants were: Hubbell, Roth and 
Clark, Inc, Alfred Benesch and Company, Nowak and Fraus, Anderson 
Eckstein and Westrick and NTH Consultants. The total funding for any 
and all work performed under these as-needed contracts will not exceed 
budgeted amounts. 

The Pontiac City Council authorizes the Mayor to enter a three year 
contracts with; Hubbel, Roth and Clark, Inc, Alfred Benesch and 
Company, Nowak and Fraus, Anderson Eckstein and Westrick and 
NTH Consultants for as-needed engineering services as budgeted in the 
general fund and both major and local street funds. 



CITY OF PONTIAC 
OFFICIAL MEMORANDUM 

Executive Branch 

TO: Honorable Mayor, Council President and City Council Members 

FROM: Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor, at the request of 
Terrence King, DPW Director 

DATE: January 17, 2017 

RE: City owned parking lots and sidewalks- Redigan 

The Department of Public Works has prepared and advertised a request for 
proposals for snow removal in all city owned parking lots, sidewalks and parking 
areas in the downtown area along Saginaw Street. This contract work will be paid 
out of the budgeted line item under local snow removal. 

The respondents to the RFP were: 
• Redigan Outdoor Services: $5,930 per occurrence 
• Pavex Corporation $21 , 1 05 per occurrence 
• Ozell"s Landscaping & Snow removal $0.00 (no bid) 

The bids were tabulated and checked. Based on the review, the lowest qualified 
bidder is Redigan Outdoor Services@ $5,930 per occurrence 

It is the recommendation of the Department of Public Works that the City accepts 
the bid by Redigan Outdoor services and authorizes the Mayor or Deputy Mayor to 
sign a contract for Snow removal services. The bid amount is within budget 
constraints. 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

WHEREAS, 

NOW, THEREFORE, 
BE IT RESOLVED, 

The City of Pontiac has advertised and received responses to a proposal 
For snow removal services on city owned parking lots, sidewalks and 

Parking areas along Saginaw Street in the downtown and; 

a bid tabulation was prepared and reviewed by the purchasing agent of 
the city, and; 

the City identified the low bidder as Redigan Outdoor services with a 
total of$5,930 

The Pontiac City Council authorized thru the Mayor or the Deputy 
Mayor to enter into a contract with Redigan Outdoor Services for 
snow removal services 



TDK 

Attachments 



M morandum 

To: Honorable City Council 

From: GarlandS. Doyle, M.P.A., CNP, Deputy Director, Community Development Department 

Thru: Jane Bais-DiSessa, Deputy Mayor 

Date: January 17, 2017 

Re: Amendment ofTIFA district boundaries 

The City of Pontiac received a request from Rivore Metals, LLC and Nestoros Properties, LLC 

(Rivore) to establish a brownfield on parcels 19-04-226-001 cmmnonly lmown as 366 E. South 

Boulevard, 19-04-226-003 commonly known as 400 E. South Boulevard and 19-04-226-013 

commonly lmown as 500 South Boulevard for the reuse and new construction of three warehouse 

buildings totaling 105,200 square feet. Rivore is proposing a $6 million investment over three 

phases. As a result of their redevelopment, they estimate that they will create 10-20 new jobs as 

well as relocate 30 current positions to Pontiac. The project was presented to both the TIP A and 

Brownfield Boards on December 8, 2016. The brownfield request will be forwarded to the 

Oakland County Brownfield Redevelopment Authority once authorized by your honorable body. 

Because the parcels in which the brownfield would be designated are part of an existing Tax 
Increment Finance Authority district, either the parcels must be entirely removed from the 

distdct or the development plan must be amended. 

The process to remove a parcel from a TIP A district is the same as creating a TIP A district, and 

is govemed by MCL 125.1803. First, the City Council must pass a resolution of intent to amend 

the boundaties and in that resolution set a date for a public hearing with notice published twice in 

the newspaper of general circulation not less than 20 days and not more than 40 days before the 

date of the heating. In addition, notice must be mailed to the property taxpayer of record in the 

affected area, and the notice of the hearing must be mailed by ce1iifled mail to the goveming 

body of each taxing jurisdiction levying taxes that would be subject to capture if the amendment 

is approved. The notice shall state the date, time, and place of the hearing, and shall describe the 

boundaries of the proposed district. At the heating, a citizen, taxpayer, or the property owner of 

the City has the right to be heard in regard to this matter. After the hearing, if the City Council 

intends to proceed with the amendment, the City Council shall adopt, by majority vote of its 

members a resolution designation the boundaries as amended. Such resolution is subject to the 
veto process established by the city chatier. Upon final approval, the resolution is to be filed with 

the secretary of state and published at least once in a resolution of general circulation. 

I have attached a copy of the Rivore Metals Development Brownfield Plan which includes a map 

of the subject parcels. 



The developer is working on a tight schedule, so Council action is requested as follows: 

1. At the Council meeting on January 26, 2017 adopt the attached resolution setting the date 
and time of the required public healing, for February 23, 2017. 

2. The City Clerk is to publish the notice of public healing to appear on January 27, 2017 
and January 30, 2017 in the Oakland Press. 

3. The City Council holds the public hearing as part of the meeting on Thursday, February 
23,2017. 

4. The City Council votes on the resolution amending the distlict boundaries on Thursday, 
February 23, 2017 after the hearing. 

If Council concurs, please approve the following resolution: 

Whereas, the City of Pontiac has received a request to establish a brownfield district 
within the existing TIF A district; and, 

Whereas, in order for the brownfield district to be established, the parcel must either be 

removed from the TIF A district or the district must be removed from the TIF A 

development plan: and, 

Whereas, because the current parcel's taxable value is significantly below the base value 

of the parcel, removal from the TIF A district is most desirable; and, 

Therefore, be it resolved that the Pontiac City Council shall hold a public hearing during 

its regular scheduled City Council meeting at 6:00P.M on Thursday, February 23, 2017 

in Pontiac City Hall, City Council Chambers, 47450 Woodward Ave., for the purpose of 

receiving public comment on the proposal to remove from the boundaries of the Tax 

Increment Finance Authority parcels 19-04-226-001, 19-04-226-003 and 19-04-226-013. 



OAKLAND COUNTY 
BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

BROWNFI PlAN 

FORTH RIVORE METALS DEVELOPMENT 
LOCATED AT 366,400 AND 500 EAST SOUTH BOULEVARD 
PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 

January 4, 2017 

Approved by BRA: 
Approved by Board of Commissioners: 

Prepared on Behalf of: 

Nestoros Properties, LLC and Rivore Metals, LLC 
850 Stephenson Highway, Suite 308 
Troy, Michigan 48083 
Contact Person: Mr. Kosta Marselis 
Telephone: (248) 397-8724 
Email: kosta@rivore.com 

Prepared By: 

PM Environmental, Inc. 
4080 West Eleveri Mile Road 
Berkley, Michigan 48072 
Contact Person: Stacey DeSantis 
Telephone: (248) 414-1417 
Email: desantis@pmenv.com 



Brownfield Plan for the Rivore Metals Development 
Located at 366, 400 and 500 East South Boulevard, Pontiac, Michigan 

PM Project No. 01-7719-0-001; January 4, 2017 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE ....................................................................................................... 2 
II. GENERAL DEFINITIONS AS USED IN THIS PLAN ............................................................................ 2 
Ill. BROWNFIELD PROJECT ..................................................................................................................... 2 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY AND BASIS FOR ELIGIBILITY ............................................... 2 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION ................................................................................................................... 3 

IV. BROWNFIELD PLAN ELEMENTS ............................................................................................................ 4 
A. Description of Costs to Be Paid for with Tax Increment Revenues and Summary of Eligible 

Activities (Sec. 13 (1 )(a),(b)) ............................................................................................................. 4 
B. Estimate of Captured Taxable Value and Tax Increment Revenues (Sec.13(1 )(c)) ........................ 5 
C. Method of Financing and Description of Advances by the Municipality (Sec.13(1 )(d)) .................... 6 
D. Maximum Amount of Note or Bonded Indebtedness (Sec.13(1 )(e)) ................................................ 6 
E. Beginning Date and Duration of Brownfield Plan (Sec.13(1 )(f)) ....................................................... 6 
F. Estimated Impact of Tax Increment Financing on Revenues of Taxing Jurisdictions (Sec.13(1 )(g)) 6 
G. Legal Description, Property Map, Statement of Qualifying Characteristics and Personal Property 

(Sec.13(h)) ........................................................................................................................................ 7 
H. Displacement and Relocation of Individuals on Eligible Property (Sec.13(i-l)) ................................. 7 
I. Description of Proposed Use of Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund (Sec.13(m)) .................... 7 
J. Other Material that the Authority or Governing Body Considers Pertinent (Sec.13(n)) .................... 7 

APPENDICES 

Appendix A 
Appendix B 
Appendix C 
Appendix D 
Appendix E 

Documentation that the Property is a "Facility" 
Parcel Map, Site Plan and Rendering 
Eligible Activities Estimates 
Tax Increment Financing Table 
Legal Description 

PM Environmental, Inc. 
Table of Contents Page i 



PROJECT SUMMARY 

Project Name: 

Project Location: 

Type of Eligible 
Property: 

Eligible Activities: 

Reimbursable Costs: 

Years to 
Complete Developer 
Reimbursement: 

Estimated Total 
Investment: 

Job Creation: 

Project Overview: 

Brownfield Plan for the Rivore Metals Development 
Located at 366, 400 and 500 East South Boulevard, Pontiac, Michigan 

PM Project No. 01-7719-0-001; January 4, 2017 

Rivore Metals Development 

The property is located at 366, 400 and 500 East South 
Boulevard, Pontiac, Oakland County, Michigan. 

Property is determined to be a "facility" 

Baseline Environmental Site Assessments, Due Care 
Activities, Demolition, Site Preparation, Infrastructure 
Improvements, and Preparation of a Brownfield Plan and 381 
Work Plan 

$1,824,600 (includes eligible activities and 15% contingency) 

Approximately 22 years 

Approximately $6 million 

Approximately 10-20 full-time new jobs as well as an 
anticipated 40-45 jobs via partnership with Goodwill Industries 
Outsource I Greenworks program. 

This redevelopment is for a locally based company to expand 
operations in Oakland County. The multi-phase development 
project includes site infrastructure and demolition activities of 
the existing property for the reuse and new construction of 
three warehouse buildings totaling 105,200 square feet. 

PM Environmental, Inc. 
Page 1 



Brownfield Plan for the Rivore Metals Development 
Located at 366, 400 and 500 East South Boulevard, Pontiac, Michigan 

PM Project No. 01-7719-0-001; January 4, 2017 

I. INTRODUCTION AND PURPOSE 

In order to promote the revitalization of environmentally distressed and blighted areas within the 
boundaries of Oakland County ("the County"), the County has established the Oakland County 
Brownfield Redevelopment Authority (OCBRA) (the "Authority") pursuant to the Brownfield 
Redevelopment Financing Act, Michigan Public Act (PA) 381 of 1996, as amended. 

The primary purpose of this Brownfield Plan ("Plan") is to promote the redevelopment of and 
private investment in certain "Brownfield" properties within the County. Inclusion of property within 
this Plan will facilitate financing of environmental response and other eligible activities at eligible 
properties, and will also provide tax incentives to eligible tax payers willing to invest in 
revitalization of eligible sites, commonly referred to as Brownfields. By facilitating redevelopment 
of Brownfield properties, this Plan is intended to promote economic growth for the benefit of the 
residents of the County. 

The identification or designation of a developer or proposed use for the eligible property that is 
subject to this Plan shall not be integral to the effectiveness or validity of this Plan. This Plan is 
intended to apply to the eligible property identified in this Plan and to identify and authorize the 
eligible activities to be funded. Any change in the proposed developer or proposed use of the 
eligible property shall not necessitate an amendment to this Plan, affect the application of this 
Plan to the eligible property, or impair the rights available to the Authority under this Plan. 

This Plan is intended to be a living document, which may be modified or amended as necessary 
to achieve the purposes of Public Act 381, as amended (Act 381 ). The applicable sections of Act 
381 , as amended are noted throughout the Plan for reference purposes. 

This Brownfield Plan contains information required by Section 13(1) of Act 381. 

This Brownfield Plan is a single phase associated with the redevelopment of the Property. 

II. GENERAL DEFINITIONS AS USED IN THIS PLAN 

Terms used in this Plan are defined as provided in the following statutes, as appropriate: 

The Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, 1996 Mich. Pub. Acts. 502 which amended Pub. 
Act 381, M.C.L. § 125.2651 et seq., as amended 

Ill. BROWNFIELD PROJECT 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY AND BASIS FOR ELIGIBILITY 

The Eligible Property has historically consisted of three (3) legal parcels totaling approximately 
11.2 acres with a street address of 366, 400 and 500 East South Boulevard, Pontiac, Oakland 
County, Michigan (the "Property"). 

PrQperty Address ParceiiD Approximate Facility or Adjacent 
Acreage to a. Facility 

366 East South Boulevard 64-19-04-226-001 2.817 Adjacent 
400 East South Boulevard 64-19-04-226-003 6.197 Facility 
500 East South Boulevard 64-19-04-226-013 2.186 Facility 

PM Environmental, Inc. 
Page2 



Brownfield Plan for the Rivore Metals Development 
Located at 366, 400 and 500 East South Boulevard, Pontiac, Michigan 

PM Project No. 01-7719-0-001; January 4, 2017 

The Property is currently zoned Industrial and is located in an area of the City of Pontiac in 
Oakland County characterized by industrial and residential properties. 

The parcel included in this Plan can be considered "eligible property" as defined by Section 2 of 
Act 381 because (a) it is located within the City of Pontiac within Oakland County, a Qualified 
Local Government Unit; (b) two parcels comprising the Property have been determined to be a 
"facility" and (c) one parcel is adjacent to the "facility". 

PM reviewed previous environmental reports (completed in 2016) which were completed for the 
subject property. Summaries of the reviewed reports, as applicable to the subject property are 
presented below. 

The subject property was utilized from 1924 to 2015 for the manufacturing of rubber cement, 
plastics, auto parts, flooring, chemicals, and machinery, for moving and storage and a waste 
disposal site. 

The environmental conditions at the Property have been evaluated during the course of 
environmental due diligence activities by Dragun and Triterra. Soil at the Property contains 
multiple contaminants at concentrations above the Part 201 Generic Residential Cleanup Criteria 
(GRCC). Based on these laboratory analytical results, the Property meets the requirements for 
classification as a "facility" under Section 20101 of NREPA Act 451, Part 201, as amended. 
Chemicals that were detected in soil at concentrations exceeding one or more generic Part 201 
criteria are Arsenic, Barium, Benzene, 1, 1-Dichloroethene, Ethylbenzene, Methylene chloride, 2-
Methylnaphthalene, Naphthalene, Phenanthrene, Selenium, Trichoroethylene, 1 ,2,4-
Trimethylbenzene, Vinyl Chloride, Xylenes and Zinc. Target parameters were detected in soil gas 
at concentrations below respective Residential and Non-Residential Vapor Intrusion Shallow Soil 
Gas (sub-slab) Screening Levels. Target parameters were also detected in soil at concentrations 
below respective Non-Residential Groundwater Volatilization to Indoor Air Inhalation Criteria; 
however, certain concentrations were above Vapor Intrusion Groundwater Screening Levels. 

Text and figures from the Baseline Environmental Assessment (BEA), dated June 1, 2016, 
documenting the "facility" status is provided in Appendix A. 

PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

Nestoros Properties, LLC (and/or Rivore Metals LLC), or such other developer as approved by 
the Authority, are collectively the project developer ("Developer") and intend to use brownfield 
redevelopment tax increment financing to reimburse the cost of the eligible activities described 
herein. All activities are needed to prepare the Property for redevelopment and reuse. 

The proposed redevelopment includes three phases of site infrastructure and demolition activities 
of the existing property for the reuse and new construction of three warehouse buildings totaling 
105,200 square feet. This property is in a prime location for this type of industry. The property has 
been unused, vacant and an eye sore for the City for several years. Located within Pontiac's 
Diamond Corridor (Diamond Triangle) and along the City's Non-Motorized trail system. 

The developer will invest an estimated $6 million dollars over three phases in the redevelopment 
and create approximately 1 0-20 new direct jobs for the area as well as relocation of 30 current 
jobs. These jobs will range in salary from $35,000 to $68,000. Additionally a partnership with 
Goodwill Industries Outsource I Greenworks program is being pursued. Greenworks assists in 

PM Environmental, Inc. 
Page 3 



Brownfield Plan for the Rivore Metals Development 
Located at 366, 400 and 500 East South Boulevard, Pontiac, Michigan 

PM Project No. 01~7719-0-001; January 4, 2017 

employing structurally unemployed individuals pursue career opportunities. An anticipated 40-45 
jobs via the partnership with Greenworks tenants is expected within phases two and three. 

The first phase of development was started in Fall of 2016 with a slated completion goal of Spring 
2017. Phase one includes reuse of the existing 35,200 square foot building on the 500 parcel for 
future use in sorting, processing, storage and office space for metals trading and project 
management operations. This phase will work to repair the property's poor condition which was 
in shambles from the previous owner with debris, open basements, buried footings and stockpiles 
of fill soil. Phase one will thus include removal of all debris and concrete foundations on site, 
backfill and grading activities to level the property and placement of millings to prepare the 
property for additional development. Additionally, extensive landscaping, curb and sidewalk 
improvements along the property line will be created to improve the overall condition and 
aesthetics of the area. Phase I began in October 2016 at the request of the City of Pontiac as 
they are eager for the anticipated improvements to be made as soon as possible. 

Phase two will begin in Spring of 2017 to include development of an additional warehouse and 
processing building on the western portion of the property (366 parcel) totaling approximately 
30,000 square feet. Parking will be developed surrounding the building. This phase is anticipating 
inclusion of Greenworks for the use of a Welding School along with recycling activities for 
Consumers and DTE. Goodwill's Green Works, Inc. is a Detroit-based subsidiary of Goodwill 
Industries of Greater Detroit that began in 2010. Green Works offers cost saving, environmentally 
friendly asset recovery services to customers such as DTE Energy and is the first standalone free 
enterprise venture undertaken by Goodwill Industries of Greater Detroit. Phase two and three of 
the project will include Greenworks welding school and recycling activities for Consumers and 
DTE. Early estimates from Greenworks state this project will add 40-45 jobs to their program. The 
City of Pontiac has been very supportive of this project and is excited to have their residents 
working with Greenworks. The City also requested that the site clearing and preparation activities 
start immediately due to concerns from citizens regarding the poor condition the property was left 
in by the former owner. 

Phase three will begin in Fall of 2018 to support additional growth for both Greenworl<s and Rivore. 
It will include a final warehouse building totaling approximately 40,000 square feet on the central 
parcel ( 400 parcel). Additional parking will be added to support the expanding building. 

A preliminary site plan and rendering are included in Appendix B. 

IV. BROWNFIELD PLAN ELEMENTS 

A. Description of Costs to Be Paid for with Tax Increment Revenues and Summary of 
Eligible Activities (Sec. 13 (1)(a},(b)) 

Tax Increment Financing revenues will be used to reimburse the costs of "Eligible Activities" (as 
defined by Section 2 of PA 381) as permitted under the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act 
that include: Baseline Environmental Site Assessments, Due Care Activities, Demolition, Site 
Preparation, Infrastructure Improvements, and Preparation of a Brownfield Plan and Act 381 Work 
Plan. A complete itemization of these activity expenses is included in Appendix C. The total 
amount of developer reimbursement utilizing tax increment revenues is a not-to-exceed amount 
of $1,824.600. 

PM Environmental, Inc. 
Page4 



Brownfield Plan for the Rivore Metals Development 
Located at 366, 400 and 500 East South Boulevard, Pontiac, Michigan 

PM Project No. 01-7719-0-001; January 4, 2017 

The following eligible activities and budgeted costs are intended as part of the development of 
the Property and are to be financed solely by the developer. The Authority is not responsible for 
the cost of eligible activities and will incur no debt. 

1. Baseline Environmental Site Assessment Activities; Phase I Environmental Site 
Assessment (ESA), Phase II ESA, Baseline Environmental Assessment (BEA), 
Documentation of Due Care Compliance (DDCC) and Vapor Intrusion Assessment at 
a cost of .$22, 100. 

2. Due Care Activities; Soil and/or groundwater evaluation for onsite management and 
additional Vapor Intrusion Assessment including sampling in the area of the proposed 
future buildings, Vapor Intrusion Mitigation for Development Phase Two and Three at 
an estimated cost of $315,000. 

3. Demolition Activities if determined necessary; disposal of non-reusable/non-recyclable 
building elements, foundation removal and disposal, fill/compaction and rough grading 
to balance site where building and improvements were located, professional fees 
related engineering and design work directly related to building and/or site demolition 
activities at an estimated $735,000. 

4. Site Preparation Activities; geotechnical engineering including investigating existing 
subsurface conditions, assessing risks posed by site conditions, designing earthworks 
and structure foundations, temporary traffic and erosion control and grading including 
reasonable mass grading of entire project site at an estimated cost of $355,000. 

5. Infrastructure Improvements; side walk improvements, curbs and gutters, professional 
fees related to engineering and design work if directly related to infrastructure 
improvements at an estimated cost of $145,000. 

6. Preparation of Brownfield Plan and associated activities (e.g. meetings with BRA, etc.) 
at a cost of approximately $20.000. 

All activities are intended to be "Eligible Activities" under the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing 
Act. The total estimated cost of Eligible Activities subject to reimbursement from tax increment 
revenues is approximately $1,592,100, with a 15% contingency of $232,500 for a not to exceed 
total of $1,824,600 unless the Plan is amended and approved by the BRA and County 
Commission. This plan also accounts for the capture of $5,000 annually, for OCBRA 
administration fees. 

A complete listing of the Eligible Activities is included in Appendix C. 

B. Estimate of Captured Taxable Value and Tax increment Revenues (Sec.13(1)(c)) 

Incremental taxes on real property included in the redevelopment project will be captured under 
this Brownfield Plan to reimburse eligible activity expenses. The taxable value of the real property 
was $234,630 for the 2016 tax year. The estimated taxable value of the completed development 
is $1,900,000. This assumes a phase~in to include all three project phases for completion of the 
redevelopment, which has been incorporated into the tax increment financing assumptions for 
this Plan. An annual increase in taxable value of 1% has been used for calculation of future tax 

PM Environmental, Inc. 
Page 5 



Brownfield Plan for the Rivore Metals Development 
Located at 366, 400 and 500 East South Boulevard, Pontiac, Michigan 

PM Project No. 01-7719-0-001; January 4, 2017 

increments in this Plan. Appendix D details the estimate of capture tax increment revenues for 
each year of the Plan from the eligible property. 

C. Method of Financing and Description of Advances by the Municipality {Sec.13(1}(d}) 

Redevelopment activities at the property will be funded by Nestoros Properties, LLC (and/or 
Rivore Metals LLC). Costs for eligible activities funded by Nestoros Properties, LLC (and/or Rivore 
Metals LLC) will be repaid under the Michigan Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Program 
(Michigan Public Act 381, as amended) with incremental taxes generated by future development 
of the property. No advances will be made by the Authority for this project. All reimbursements 
authorized under this Plan, as amended shall be governed by the Reimbursement Agreement. 

D. Maximum Amount of Note or Bonded Indebtedness {Sec.13(1)(e)} 

No note or bonded indebtedness will be incurred by any local unit of government for this project. 

Beginning Date and Duration of Brownfield Plan (Sec.13(1)(f)) 

In no event shall the duration of the Plan exceed 35 years following the date of the resolution 
approving the Plan, nor shall the duration of the tax capture exceed the lesser of the period 
authorized under subsection (4) and (5) of Section 13 of Act 381 or 30 years. Further, in no event 
shall the beginning date of the capture of tax increment revenues be later than five years after the 
date of the resolution approving the Plan, as amended. The Property will become part of this Plan 
on the date this Plan is approved by Oakland County Board of Commissioners. 

F. Estimated Impact of Tax Increment Financing on Revenues of Taxing Jurisdictions 
(Sec.13(1 )(g)) 

The anticipated activities reimbursed or funded through tax increment financing total $1,824,600 
for developer reimbursement and $100,000 estimated for Local Site Remediation Revolving Fund 
(LSRRF) capture totaling $1,924,600. 

Taxes will continue to be generated to taxing jurisdictions on local captured millages and school 
millages at the base taxable value of $234,630 throughout the duration of this plan totaling 
approximately $12,899 annually. 

School tax capture is currently proposed under this plan. However, if approval is not received it 
is anticipated school tax capture will provide new tax revenue of $986,264 throughout the duration 
of this Plan. 

Non-capturable millages; including MESSA Judgement, Zoo Authority and Art Institute, will see 
an immediate increase in tax revenue following redevelopment and will provide anticipated new 
tax revenue of $28,7 41 throughout the duration of this plan. 

For a complete breakdown of the captured millages and developer reimbursement refer to the 
Tax Increment Financing Table in Appendix D. 

PM Environmental, Inc. 
Page 6 



Brownfield Plan for the Rivore Metals Development 
Located at 366, 400 and 500 East South Boulevard, Pontiac, Michigan 

PM Project No. 01-7719-0-001; January 4, 2017 

legal Description, Property Map, Statement of Qualifying Characteristics and 
Personal Property (Sec.13(h)) 

The legal description of the Property Included in this Plan is attached in Appendix E. 

A copy of the BEA, which documents the property as a "facility" is included in Appendix A. 

A map of the Project location and site drawings are included in Appendix B. 

Personal property is not included in this plan. 

H. Displacement and Relocation of Individuals on Eligible Propert)£ (Sec.13fi:.lll 

No displacement of residents or families is expected as part of this project. 

I. Description of Proposed Use of local Site Remediation Revolving Fund (Sec.13(m)) 

Use of the LSRRF is not part of the scope of this project, however, the LSRRF is anticipated to 
capture taxes for two years following reimbursement of eligible activities to the developer. 

J. Other Material that the Authority or Governing Body Considers Pertinent (Sec.13(i]}l 

At this time, the developer is seeking reimbursement from the MEDC/MSF for the use of school 
millages to aid in reducing the reimbursement period from 30 years to an estimated 22 years. 
Should MSF reimbursement not be received, local tax increment revenue will be utilized to 
reimburse all eligible activities as increment is available. It is estimated that not all eligible 
expenses would be reimbursed within the 30 year limit should MEDC/MSF support not be 
received. Therefore limiting reimbursement to available local tax increment revenue estimated at 
approximately $1.64 Million over a 30 year period. The tax increment financing table provided in 
Appendix D includes reimbursement with school taxes. 

PM Environmental, Inc. 
Page 7 



pendixA 



BROWNFIELD DEVELOPMENT J ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING J NATURAL HESOURGES 

ENVIRONMENTAL 
Conducted Pursuant to Section 101.26(1){c) 

of Public Act 451 of 1994, as amended 

366, 400, AND 500 SOUTH BOULEVARD EAST 

PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48341 

June 1, 2016 

Prepared For: 

Nestoros Properties, LLC 
Attn: Mr. Kosta Marselis 

850 Stephenson Highway, Suite 308 
Troy, Michigan 48083 

Prepared By: 

Triterra 
1210 N. Cedar Street, Suite A 

Lansing, Michigan 48906 
(517} 702~0470 

Project No. 16-1584 

©Triterra 



Base lime Ernvironmerntal Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................... 1 

2.0 PROPERTY INFORMATION ....................................................................................................... 2 

3.0 SUMMARY OF PHASE I ENVIRONMENTAL SITE ASSESSMENT ................................................... 3 

4.0 KNOWN CONTAMINATION ...................................................................................................... 5 

4.1 Subsurface Evaluations ....................................................................................................... 5 
4.2 Subsurface Conditions ........................................................................................................ 6 
4.3 Summary of Contamination ................................................................................................ 6 
4.4 Abandoned Containers ....................................................................................................... 7 

5.0 lii<EUHOOD OF OTHER CONTAMINATION ................................................................................ 8 

6.0 CONCLUSIONS ....................................................................................................................... 9 

7.0 IDENTIFICATION OF THE AUTHOR(S) OF THE BEA ................................................................... 10 

8.0 REFERENCES ..................................................................................................................... 11 

Figure 1: 
Figure 2: 
Figure 3: 

Property Location 
Property Orientation Diagram 
Soil Boring Location Diagram 

FIGURES 

Figure 4: Soil Analytical Results Exceeding MDEQ GRCC 

TABLES 

Table 1:Soil Analytical Results 
Table 2:Groundwater Analytical Results 

ATIACHMENTS 

Attachment 1: Property Description Information 
Attachment 2: Triterra's April26, 2016 Phase I ESA 
Attachment 3: Soil Boring Logs 
Attachment 4: Laboratory Analytical Reports 
Attachment 5: Professional Qualifications 

i 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

1.0 INTRODUCTION 

This Baseline Environmental Assessment (BEA) describes the known environmental conditions and concerns 

associated with three parcels of land located at 366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Oakland 

County, Michigan (hereinafter referred to as the Property). Furthermore, this BEA, as defined by the 

Environmental Remediation, Part 201 ofthe Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act (NREPA), 

1994 PA 451, as amended, and the Part 201 Rules promulgated thereunder, has been prepared for the 

purpose of establishing an exemption to liability pursuant to Section 2012.6(1)(c) for a new owner or operator 
of property that is a facility as defined by Section 20101(1)(s). Additionally, this BEA has been conducted 

within 45 days of Nestoros Properties, LLC (the Submitter) becoming the owner of the Property. 

In order to maintain the exemption to liability, the owner/operator will also disclose this BEA to any 

subsequent purchaser or transferee before conveying interest in the property pursuant to Section 20126(1)(c) 

and Rule 919. The owner/operator of the Property also understands and will comply with their due care 
obligations under Section 20107a with respect to any existing contamination to prevent unacceptable 

exposure; prevent exacerbation; take reasonable precautions; provide reasonable cooperation, assistance, 

and access to authorized persons taking response activities at the Property; comply with land use restrictions 

associated with response activities; and not impede the effectiveness of response activities implemented at 

the Property. 

Triterra prepared this BEA on behalf of the Submitter and in general accordance with the applicable 

Administrative Rules for Part 201, effective December 21, 2002, the Michigan Department of Environmental 

Quality (MDEQ) "Baseline Environmental Assessment Submittal Form" [Form EQP 4025 (February 2015)], and 

the MDEQguidance document titled "Contents of a BEA Report." Triterra is providing this BEAto the MDEQ in 

accordance with Section 20126(1)(c)(ii) of Part 2.01. 

The Property Location and Property Orientation Diagrams are presented as Figure 1 and 2, respectively. The 
Submitter plans to acquire 400 and 500 South Boulevard East on or before July 31,2016, and has an option to 

purchase 366 South Boulevard East. 

1 



Environmental uo.:.,·""'""'!.:W"...VIIJU>T 

366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

2.0 PROPERTY INFORMATION 

The Property is located at 366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East in the City of Pontiac, Oakland County, 
Michigan (Figure 1). The legal descriptions of the Property, tax identification numbers 19-04-226-001, 19-04-
226-003, and 19-04-226-013 are included in Attachment 2. 

The Property consists of approximately 11.21 acres developed with an approximately 35,200-square foot, 
industrial building containing a one-story warehouse located at 500 South Boulevard East. The remainder 
of the Property consists of concrete and asphalt-paved parking and driveways, an outdoor metal sorting 
yard, a dirt/gravel lot, demolition debris piles, and the concrete foundation of the building previously 
located at 400-440 South Boulevard East. Property layout and boundaries are depicted on the Property 
Orientation Diagram (Figure 2). 

Electrical services are provided by the DTE Electric. Natural gas is provided by Consumers Energy. The 
Oakland County Water Resource Commission provides potable water and sewer services to the Property. 

2 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

3.0 SUMMARY OF PHASE I ESA 

The historical and current uses of the Property were evaluated as part ofTriterra's April26, 2016 Phase 1 ESA, 
which is included as Attachment 2. The Phase I ESA was conducted according to the ASTM International 
(ASTM) Practice E 1527-05/13, which is accepted in the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency regulations as 
satisfying one component of the requirements of All Appropriate Inquiries {AAI) under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, as amended (CERCLA). 

Based on Triterra's review of historical information, from 1924 to current day, the property has been utilized 
for the manufacturing of rubber cement, plastics, auto parts, flooring, chemicals, and machinery, for moving 
and storage, a liquid waste disposal site, metal recycling/processing, and various commercial and office uses. 
Prior to 1924, a church was located on the eastern portion of the Property, and the remainder was most likely 
undeveloped. 

The Phase I ESA revealed the following recognized environmental conditions (RECs) in connection with the 
Property: 

);;. The documented presence of soil contamination from historical operations at the Property. A 2012 
subsurface investigation completed by Dragun Corporation revealed the presence of arsenic and 
various volatile organic compounds {VOCs) at levels above the MDEQ Part 201 GCC in soil on the 
Property. Therefore, the Property meets the definition of a "facility", as defined by Section 20101 of 
PA 451, Part 201, as amended. 

);;. The potential for unknown and/or undocumented releases of hazardous substances and/or 
petroleum products associated with historical and current industrial operations on the 
Property. 

o The Property was used for industrial and waste disposal purposes from at least 1924 to 
current day, and involved the use of petroleum products and hazardous substances. Historical 
operations included a rubber cement factory, auto part manufacturer, plastics and chemical 
manufacturer, and liquid hazardous waste disposal and storage. 

o A metal scrap processing company currently operates in the building located at 500 South 
Boulevard East. Triterra observed the use and storage of hydraulic oil, motor oil, die 
lubricants, diesel, gasoline, and metalworking fluids on the Property. Unidentified spills were 
observed beneath the metal processor and in the pit below. Stains were observed on the 
concrete in the north portion of the warehouse, and strong petroleum odor, visible sheen 
and staining were observed near the southwest exit of the warehouse. 

o A railroad spur has run along the west side of the Property since at least 1907 and was likely 
used to transport various materials including coal, petroleum products, and/or hazardous 
substances. 

o A 1924 Sanborn map depicts a gas tank north of the Van Au ken Company factory, and two 
gas tanks located north of the Baldwin Rubber Company factory in the 1950 and 1970 
Sanborn maps. 

);;. The potential for migration of contamination from nearby off-site sources. 
o Triterra identified six sites of environmental concern on the EDR report. The sites of concern 

are located directly adjacent, or hydrologically upgradient of the Property and have the 
potential to have impacted the Property. 

3 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

o A 1950 Sanborn map depicts a coal yard north of the Property; transformers, five buried oil 
tanks, and a rubber cement factory to the west and southwest of the Property. 

o An automobile manufacturing plant was located on the east adjoining site {560-660 South 
Boulevard East), and operated for at least 66 years. Thirty USTs containing petroleum 
products and other hazardous materials have been removed or closed in the ground on the 
site; thirteen releases from the USTs have been reported. 

The Phase I ESA has also revealed the following Historical REC in connection with the Property: 

);> A release was reported June 9, 1999 following the removal of two 5,000-gallon gasoline 
underground storage tanks (USTs) and a 10,000 gallon diesel UST located on the Property 
(Section 5.1). On September 27, 1999 Michigan Department of Natural Resources and Michigan 
Environmental Services Investigation granted a Tier I closure for the release. 

Triterra encountered the following data gaps associated with historical Property use: the first developed uses 
of the Property prior to 1907 and the use of the Property in 1907-1924, and 1924-1937 could not be 
determined. However, due to the industrial nature of the Property and the RECs identified above, it is 
Triterra's opinion that the data gap did not impair the ability to identify RECs in connection with the Property. 

No limitations were encountered during the Property walkover. 

4 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

4.0 KNOWN CONTAMINATION 

Information about known contamination which was used to prepare this BEA was obtained from the 
documents listed below. Subsurface investigation of the Property is summarized in the following subsections. 

};> Baseline Environmental Assessment (BEA), 366 and 400 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan, 
dated February 20, 2013, completed by Dragun Corporation (Dragun) 

};> BEA, 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan, dated August 9, 2012, completed by Dragun. 

Triterra also completed Phase II ESA activities for the Property on May 10, 2106. The following subsections 
summarize the subsurface investigation. 

4.1 Subsurface Evaluations 

2012 Subsurface Evaluation and Subsurface Conditions 
On April27, 2012, Dragun advanced twelve soil borings on the Property. A total of twelve soil samples were 
collected and analyzed for one or more of the following constituents: volatile organic compounds (VOCs), semi 

volatile organic compounds (SVOCs), polynuclear aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs ), polychlorinated biphenyls 
(PCBs), hexavalent chromium, cyanide, and Michigan Ten Metals (arsenic, barium, cadmium, chromium, 
copper, lead, mercury, selenium, silver and zinc). The soil samples collected were submitted to Fibertec 

Environmental Services (Fibertec) of Holt, Michigan. The chemical analysis results for samples collected during 
this assessment are shown on the attached Figures. The 2012 BEA's are on file with the MDEQ and therefore 
are not included with this BEA. 

Soil borings were advanced to depths ranging from 2 feet to 20feet below ground surface (bgs) except where 
refusal was encountered. Soil samples were visually classified in general accordance with the Unified Soil 
Classification System (USCS). Descriptions of soil conditions encountered at each boring are documented on 
the Soil Boring Logs are included in Attachment 3. 

The surface materials encountered at the soil borings generally consisted of either approximately 3 to 7 inches 
of concrete in the paved portions of the Property or 5 to 12 inches of silty sand topsoil in the unpaved areas. 
The soil was primarily clayey silt below the surface layer at borings DSB-1, DSB-4, DSB-5, DSB-71ocated at 366 
and 400 South Boulevard East, and borings DSB-2, DSB-3, DSB-4, and DSB-5 with occasional partings of clayey 
silt and silty sand. Fill materials consisting of fine to medium sand with gravel were encountered beneath the 
buildings located at 400 and 500 South Boulevard East. 

A temporary groundwater monitoring well was installed at DSB-1 within the southern portion of the 
warehouse located at 500 South Boulevard East. Insufficient groundwater was encountered to collect a 
sample from the temporary well. Groundwater was not encountered at the remaining boring locations within 
depths explored which ranged from 6 to 20 feet bgs. Soil Boring Location Maps are attached. 

2016 Subsurface Evaluation and Subsurface Conditions 
On May 10, 2016, Triterra advanced eleven soil borings (B1 through 811) to evaluate current soil conditions on 

the Property. A total of ten soil samples were collected and analyzed for the following constituents: VOCs, 
PAHs, and Michigan Ten Metals. Two vapor point screens (SG1 and SG2) were installed in the office portion of 
the warehouse at 500 South Blvd. East. Two soil gas samples were collected using a laboratory prepared 

5 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

BottleVac and submitted to ALS Laboratories in Holland, Michigan forVOCchemical analysis using Method T0-
15. The soil boring and vapor point locations are depicted on Figure 3. The chemical analysis results for 
samples collected during this assessment and the analytical laboratory report prepared by ALS Laboratories 
are included in Attachment 4. 

Soil borings were advanced to depths ranging from 1 foot to 7.5 feet bgs except where refusal was 
encountered. Soil samples were visually classified in general accordance with the Unified Soil Classification 
System (USCS). Descriptions of soil conditions encountered at each boring are documented on the Soil Boring 
Logs are included in Attachment 3. 

4.2 Subsurface Conditions 

The surface materials encountered in soil borings B1 thru BS generally consisted of fill material consisting of 
brown to reddish-brown fine to medium sand with trace silt; with trace gravet brick fragments, asphalt pieces, 
slag, and coal pieces to approximately two feet bgs followed by silty clay and/or clayey sand extending to the 
explored depths of the borings. The surface materials encountered in the shallow soil borings B6 thru B11 
consisted of fill materials similar to those found in borings B1 thru BS. 

4.3 Summary of Contamination 

The environmental conditions at the Property have been evaluated during the course of environmental due 
diligence activities by Dragun and Triterra. Soil at the Property contains constituents at concentrations above 
the Part 201 Generic Residential Cleanup Criteria (GRCC). Based on these laboratory analytical results, the 
Property meets the requirements for classification as a "facility" under Section 20101 of NREPA Act 451, Part 
201, as amended. 

Chemicals that were detected in soil at concentrations exceeding one or more generic Part 201 criteria are 
listed in the table below. 

Soil Analytical Re$i.llts that Exceed Generic Residential Cleanup Criteria 

DRAGUN201Z DRAGUN2012 
TRITERRA 2016 CONSTITUeNT/ MAl!IMUM GRCC 366 & 400 S. Blvd. E. SOO s. Blvd. E. 

SAMPlE lOCATION CONCENTRATION (Jlgfkg) EXCEEDED CAS NUMBER 
SAMPLE lOCATION Sample location 

B2 (1.5'-2.5') 

Arsenic 
B3 (2.0' -4.0') 

7440382 
DSB-3 (3'-4') DSB-3 (1'-2') B5 (5.5'-7.5') 11,000 DW,GSI, DC 

B7 (0.0'-1.0') 

B9 (0.0'-1.0') 

Barium 
Bl (1.0-2.5') NA NA 590,000 GSI 

7440393 

Benzene DSB-1 (8'-10') DW,GSI, 
NA NA 65,000 

71432 DSB-S (12'-14') SVIA, VSIC 

1,1-Dichloroethene 
NA DSB-1 (0-2') NA 510 DW,SVIA 

75354 

JJJ 6 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

Soil Analytical Results th<1t Exceed Generic Residential Cleanup Criteria 

DRAGUN2012 DRAGUN 201il 
CONSTITUENT/ TRITERRA 2016 MAl(IMUM 366 & 400 S. Blvd; E. 500 S. Blvd. E. 

CONCENTRATION (ll!l/kg) CAS NUMBER SAMPLE LOCATION 
SAMPLE LOCATION Sample location 

Ethylbenzene DSB-1 (8'-10') 
NA NA 7,400 

100414 DSB-5 (12'-14') 

Methylene chloride 
NA NA B3 (2.0-4.0') 4,700 

75092 

2-Methylnaphthalene 
NA NA B3 (2.0-4.0') 48,000 

91576 

Naphthalene 
NA NA B3 (2.0-4.0') 5,000 

91203 

Phenanthrene 
NA NA B3 (2.0-4.0') 6,100 

85018 

Selenium 
DSB-4 (2' -3') NA NA 450 

7782492 

Trichoroethylene 
DSB-6 (14'-16') NA 

B7 (0.0-1.0') 
530 

79016 B10 (0.0-1.0') 

1,2,4-

Trimethylbenzene DSB-1 (8'-10') NA B3 (2.0-4.0') 9,600 

95636 

Vinyl Chloride 
DSB-5 (14'-16') NA NA 440 

75014 

Xylenes DSB-1 (8'-10') 

1330207 DSB-5 (14'-16') 
NA NA 21,000 

Zinc B7 (0.0'-1.0') 
NA NA S20,000 

7440666 

GRCC 
EXCEEDED 

DW,GSI 

DW 

GSI 

GSI 

GSI 

GSI 

DW 

DW,GSI 

DW, GSI, SVIA 

DW,GSI 

GSI 

.. 
Note: DW = Dnnklng Water Crltena; GSI = Groundwater Surface Interface Cntena; DCC = Direct Contact Cntena; SOli Volat1hzatlon to Indoor Air 
Inhalation (SVIA); Volatile Soil Inhalation Criteria (VSIC); NA =Not applicable. Concentrations reported in ppb (parts per billion or J.tg/kg) 

4.4 Abandoned Containers 

The Property will continue metals recycling operations and no discarded or abandoned containers will be 
located on the Property. Therefore, a notice of abandoned container has not been included with this BEA. 

7 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

5.0 liKEliHOOD OF OTHER CONTAMINATION 

Based on the results of the subsurface investigation, some target constituents were measured at levels above 
the respective laboratory method reporting limits but below Part 201 GRCC in soil samples collected during 
the subsurface investigation completed for the Property. Therefore, a potential exists that these constituents 
may be present at levels above Part 201 GRCC elsewhere on the Property. The extent of contamination for 
identified constituents has not been delineated, nor is it the responsibility of the Submitter. 

Triterra cannot guarantee all potential contaminants or the extent of contamination has been identified. 
Unknown and/or undetected contamination resulting from historical activities or off site sources may be 
present on the Property. 

8 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

6.0 CONClUSIONS 

The Property meets the definition of a "facility11
, as defined by Section 20101 of PA 451, Part 201, as amended, 

due to the presence of arsenic, barium, benzene, 1,1-dichloroethene, ethylbenzene, 2-methylnaphthalene, 
methylene chloride, naphthalene, phenanthrene, selenium, trichloroethylene (TCE), 1,2,4-trimethylbenzene, 
vinyl chloride, xylenes, and zinc in soil at concentrations greater than the Part 201 GRCC. 

Triterra performed the BEA based upon soil and groundwater conditions identified on the Property during 
April2012 and May 2016 subsurface investigations. In the process of obtaining information in preparation of 
this BEA report, procedures were followed that represent current reasonable and accepted practices and 
principles, in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by members of these 
professions. 

9 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

7.0 IDENTIFICATION OF THE AUTHORS OF THE BEA 

This BEA was authored by Meredeth Crane (Environmental Scientist), and reviewed by J.P. Buckingham (COO
Associate Geologist). Professional qualifications are presented in Attachment 6. 

10 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan 
June 2016 

8.0 REFERENCES 

Phase I Environmental Site Assessment, 366, 400, and 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac, Michigan, dated 
April 26, 2016, completed by Triterra. 

Baseline Environmental Assessment, 366 and 400 South Boulevard East, Pontiac Michigan, dated February 20, 
2013, completed by Dragun Corporation. 

Baseline Environmental Assessment, 500 South Boulevard East, Pontiac Michigan, dated August 9, 2012 
completed by Dragun Corporation. 

Michigan Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 451, Part 201, as amended, and the Part 
9 Rules, dated December 21, 2002, as applicable. 

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, Part 201 Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening levels, 
revised December 30, 2013. 

Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, MDEQ- RRD's Operational Memorandum No. 2, dated 
October 22, 2004. 

11 



FIGURE 1 
PROPERTY LOCATION 
366, 400, & 500 SOUTH BOULEVARD EAST 
PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48341 

OAKLAND COUNTY 
T 02N., R 10E., SECTION 04 

1000 

PROJECT NUMBER: 1.6-1584 

ADAPTED FROM Ml GEOGRAPHIC DATA LIBRARY DRG 

TRI~TERRA 

0 1000 

1:12,000 



TR1r11TERRA PROPERTY ORIENTATION DIAGRAM 

L 

366, 400 & 500 SOUTH BOULEVARD EAST 
PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48341 

4/7/2.016 



TRI(IJTERRA 
FIGURE 3 

PROJECT NUMBER: 16-1584 

SAMPLE 1 nrli.Tin~~>•c: 

IN 

366, 400 & 500 SOUTH BOULEVARD EAST 
PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48341 

DIAGRAM CREATED BY: MFC DATE:!¥23/2016 



• 
PROPERTY BOUNDARY 

CRAGUN SOIL BORING 
(APRIL27, 2012i 

GfD FD FLOOR DRAIN 

o ss STORM SEWER 

DCE DICHLOROETHENE 

DC DIRECT CONTACT 

ow DRINKING WATER 

GSI GROUNDWATER SURFACE 
WATER INTERFACE 

SVII SOIL. VOL.ATIUZATION TO 
INDOOR AIR 

TCA TRICHLOROETHANE 

VOCs VOLATILE ORGANIC 
COMPOUNDS 

NE CRITERIA NOT EXCEEDED 

NOTE ALL CONCENTRATIONS AREA 
REPORTED IN MICROGRAMS 
PER KILOGRAM (pglkg) 

SOURCE OF AERIAL 
PHOTOGRAPH: GOOGLE EARTH. 
IMAGERY DATE MAY 9, 2010 

SCALE 

,.. I I 

0 FEET 60 

The Dragun Corporatlon 
www.dragun.com 

BASELINE ENVIRONMENTAL ASSESSMENT 
500 SOUTH BOULEVARD EAST 

PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 

F~e: K:\2012\30292.()2 Stefani· FlelCal1Jbe BEA\CADIBEA\30292-02 Agure 2-dwg Date: 8.9.2012 

FIGURE2 
SOIL BORING LOCATION MAP 



Baseline Environmental Assessment 
500 South Boulevard East 
Pontiac, Michigan 
August 2012 

5 

A summary of the hazardous substances exceeding Part 201 Residential Generic Cleanup 
Criteria and Screening Levels is provided as follows: 

"CAS: Chemical Abstract Service Numher 
b ft: feet 
"~tg/kg: micrograms per kilogram 
d DSB: Dragun Soi l Boring 
"DW: Drink Water 

GSI: Groundwater Surface Water Interface 
g DC: Direct Contact 
11 VOC: Volatile Organic Compound 
; SVIIC: Soil Vo latilization to Indoor Air Inha lation 
Criteria 

Table 2 provides the calculations used to determine the Groundwater Surface Water Interface 
criteria for the following metals: barium, cadmium, copper, lead, and zinc. 

Other hazardous substances were detected, but at concentrations that did not exceed the Part 201 
Residential Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels. These other hazardous substances 
included: (1) 1,1, 1-Trichloroethane and (2) Fluoranthene. Concentrations may be greater at 
other locations of the Property. 

The Prope11y meets the Part 20 I definition of a "facility" due to the detection of hazardous 
substances in soil at concentrations exceeding the Part 201 Residential Generic Cleanup Criteria 
and Screening Levels. 

CONCLUSIONS 

Dragun conducted a BEA for the Property located at 500 South Boulevard East in Pontiac, 
Oakland County, Michigan 48341. The basis for concluding that the Property is a facility is the 
detection of hazardous substances in soil at concentrations exceeding the MDEQ Part: 201 
Residential Generic Cleanup Criteria and Screening Levels protective of the drinking water, 
groundwater sUiface water interface, direct contact, and soil volatilization to indoor air inhalation 
pathways. 

K:\20 12130292-02 Slcfimi - Fkxatubc 13b\llntcnml J{cports\lll:/\ 110292-02 BE/\ Report , 500 S Blvd East. Pon tinc.<.h'c 



TABLE 1 
SOIL ANALYTICAL RESULTS 

400 and 500 SOUTH BOULEY ARD EAST 
PONTIAC, MICHIGAN 48341 

Triterra Project No. 16-1583 

Analyzed Constituent 
MDEQ Part 201 Generic Residential Criteria 

Sample Identification, Sample Interval, and Date Collected 
and Screening Levels 

Drinking Water GSl Direct 81 82 83 84 
Constituent CAS Number Protection .Protection Contact 1.0-2.5' 1.5-2.5' 2.0-4.0' 0.5-1.51 

5/10/2016 5/10/20 16 5/1012016 5/1012016 

voc. 
I, 1,1-Tricblorocthane 71556 4,000 1,800 500,000,000 NO ND NO NO 
1,2,4-Trimctbylbenzene 95636 2,100 <70 32,000,000 NO ND 9,600 NO 
1,3,5-Trimethylbcnzcnc !OR67R 1.800 1.100 32.000,000 NO ND ND ND 
~Methylnnphthulcnc 91576 57,000 -1.200 8, 100,000 ND )\1) 48,000 NO 

thylbcnzcnc 100414 1,500 360 22,000,000 NO ND NO )\1) 

Methylene chloride 75092 100 30,000 I ,300,000 NO NO ~.700 ND 
Naphthalene 91103 35.000 730 16,000,000 ND NO ND ND 
-Propylbcnz.coc 103651 1,600 rD 2,500.000 ND NO NO NO 
etrnchloroNhcnc 127 184 100 2,000 200,000 ND ND NO ND 
olucoc 108883 16,000 5,400 50,000,000 ND ND NO ND 

tfrichlomcthene (TCE) 79016 100 4 ,000 110,000 ND ND NO NO 
[richlorofluoromcduloe 75694 52,000 NA 79,000,000 ND ND NO NO 
pcyicncs, Total 1330207 5,600 820 410,000,000 ND ND NO ND 
Other Various VOCs NA V/wC V/wC V/wC 1\'D ND ND ND 

l'AJJs 

\ccnapbthcoc 83329 300,000 8,700 4 1,000.000 ND ND 1,200 ND 

k\~enophthylcnc 208968 5,900 rD 1,600,000 )\1) ND ND ND 
~WDCCDC 1201 27 41,000 ID 280,000,000 23 ND 760 ND 
Bcnzo(a)anthracene 56553 NLL Nll. 20,000 45 NO 43 ND 
8ell7.o(a)pyrcne 50328 NLL NLL 2,000 26 ND ND NO 
~cOLo{b)fluornmhene 205992 NLL NLL 20,000 50 NO ND ND 
1lenzo(g,h,i)pcrylene 191242 NLL NLL 2.500,000 43 ND ND ND 
B~nzo(k)tluoramhene 207089 NLL NLL 200,000 NO 1\'D ND ND 
Chry!'lcnc 2 18019 NLL NLL 2,000,000 71 ND 45 ND 
:Oibcnzo(a,h)anthracenc 53703 NLL NLL 2,000 NO ND NO NO 
·luor.mthene 206440 730,000 5,500 46,000,000 66 21 190 ND 
Fluorene 86737 390,000 5,300 27,000,000 ND ND 1,400 NO 
lndeno( I ,2,3-cd)pyrcnc 193395 NLL NLL 20,000 18 ND ND ND 
'·MNhylonphthalenc 91576 57,000 4.200 8,100,000 180 NO 21.000 31 

~nphthnlene 91203 35,000 730 1,600,000 110 ND s.noo NO 
:Phenllnthrenc 85018 56,000 2,100 12,000,000 250 ND 6,100 21 

yrene 129000 480,000 rD 29,000.000 66 ND 810 NO 
Other various PAHs NA V/wC V/wC V/wC ND ND ND NO 

lnOr!anits 

senic (B) 7440382 5,800 5.800 7,600 2,400 5,800 5,800 5,300 

Barium (B) 7440393 1,300,000 ~o.ooo 37,000,000 590,000 140,000 36,000 31 ,000 

Cadmium (B) 7440439 1,200 1,600 550,000 NO ND ND NO 
Chromium, Total• 16065831 1,000,000,000 3.000,000,000 790,000,000 8,300 25,000 12,000 10,000 

oppcr(B) 744050R 5.800.000 73,000 20.000,000 28,000 26,000 15,000 11,000 

ead, Totnl • 7439921 700,000 2,500,000 400.000 S,ROO 17,000 6,900 7,800 

inc (B) 7440666 2,400,000 170,000 170,000,000 26,000 68,000 38,000 62,000 

\'lercury, TotDl (B) Varies 1,700 130 160,000 NO 31 NO ND 
Other various lnon!anics NA V/wC V/wC V/wC ND ND NO NO 

;'\OTJ!S: 
I. A. nalyhcul rcsuhs\."'!np;uN 10 f\. IDEQ cril~:ri:. prt~tmtd in Adminislrul[ \'c ltules for Purt 201 , fll vironmenbl Rcmcdiulion. oflhe Noru.ral R\.>WWCtslnd Environmcnlol t'rnrec1ion Acl, 1 9~4 PA 451 , eff~ 

2. Cunccnlr.¥1nns reported in ppb (paru ptt bilhon or ugl]cJ}. 

3 Dd\.<>t:h:d fC)UIU shown in BOLD. 

4. • • GSI Protccticn was a~kulnted fn rthc 1ndicu11..-J merols Wling the ~LDEQ !prt3dlheet for cakulalin~ GSI. A defuult wut~:r hnrdnu.~ voluc of !50 mJ:;'k' as CoCO) wus U)td rn .:oleubtc ast. 
R1:t uhs ure prtu ntN fn r surfOK:t: wa1cr receiving bodies lhut rue protected 11.•ll drinking water source. 

S. <Rl • RcvuH w'\lil ]dJ 1hon the lahorutof)' n:purtlnJ.t li mit.~. !'II R- Anu\y)i.s nor re-qun led. NLL - nut liktly tnle:.ch wulcr must snH et~ndirions., lD - lnsuffieient d>~.ta lu develop criterion 

li. V/wC "'Vorics witb W11Siituent. 
7. (B) 8X kHrut1JIJ. as defined in R 299. 1 {b). mtiY bt JUMrituh:d ifltigl.Ler th..1n the c lcului.!:J dean up crirerion. Bud:srClund le\·e l~ may be k~ than cnreria (ur some inor£nnic cnmpounds. 

85 86 87 B8 

5.5-7.5' 0.0-1.0' 0.0..1.0' 0.0-1.0' 

5/10/2016 5/10/2016 5/1012016 5/10/2016 

:-.ID ND ND NO 
l<D ND ND NO 

ND NO NO NO 
ND ND ND ND 
ND ND :-.ID NO 

NO NO ND ND 
ND ND ND ND 
ND NO NO ND 
ND ]\'!) NO NO 
ND NO NO ND 
t-,1) ND 270 ND 
]\'!) 48 NO ND 
ND NO ND NO 
1\D NO ND NO 

NO NO 16 ND 
NO NO NO ND 

ND NO 44 ND 
NO NO tOO ND 
ND ND 180 ND 
NO ND 260 ND 
NO ND 320 ['(D 

NO ND 84 ND 
ND ND 140 ND 
ND ND 58 ]\'!) 

ND ND 160 NO 
ND ND 16 )\1) 

NO ND 250 l\'D 

NO NO 130 )\1) 

ND ND 100 )\1) 

ND NO 170 )\1) 

:-II) ND ISO ND 
ND ND ND ND 

11,000 4,700 6,000 5,200 

93,000 48,000 320,000 25 000 

ND ND ND NO 

22,000 47,000 21,000 18,000 

25,000 23,000 19,000 9,600 

11,000 28,000 90,000 14,000 

49,000 83,000 ~20.000 36,000 

33 51 ND 67 

ND NO ND NO 

89 BID Trip Bla nk 

0.0-1.0' 0.0..1.0' SoiJ 
5/10/2016 5/10/2016 5/10/2016 

ND 44 <RL 
ND 46 <RL 
NO ND <RL 
NO ND <RL 
NO ND <RL 
NO NO <RL 
NO ND <RL 
NO ND <RL 
NO ND <RL 
130 ND <Rt 
NO 110 <RL 
NO ND <RL 
200 170 <Rl 
ND ND <RL 

ND ND NR 

NO NO NR 
ND NO NR 

340 850 NR 
330 680 NR 
330 1,100 NR 
340 750 NR 
NO 430 NR 
450 750 NR 
ND NO NR 
430 1,200 NR 

ND ]\1) NR 
ND 740 NR 
NO l\'D NR 

ND )\1) NR 
ND 380 NR 

460 1,000 NR 
ND ND NR 

6,000 5,400 NR 
65,000 110 000 NR 

ND 640 NR 
u,ooo 30,000 NR 
15,000 13,000 NR 

52,000 51,000 NR 
t20,000 86,000 NR 

45 48 NR 

ND ND NR 



Triterra Project No. 16-1583 

Analyzed Constituent ASGSCs Sample Identification, Sample Interval, and Date Collected 

Residential Vapor Intrusion SG1 SG2 

Constituent Cas Number Shallow Soil Gas (sub-slab) 

Screening Levels 5/10/2016 5/10/2016 

VOCs 

Dichlorodifluoromethane 75718 330,000 ND 0.54 

Acetone 67641 82,000 65 160 

lfrichlorofluoromethane 75694 330,000 ND 0.58 

1,1-Dichloroethene 75354 1,700 9.6 ND 

2-Butanone (MEK) 78933 56,000 ND 6.4 

Ethyl Acetate 141786 29,000 ND 26 

n-Hexane 110543 6,600 73 1.9 

Chloroform 67663 73 ND 0.48 

1 , 1, 1-Trichloroethane 71556 36,000 200 0.53 

Benzene 71432 32 21 1.00 

Cyclohexane 110827 58,000 22 1.2 

n-Heptane 142825 28,000 44 0.9 

4-Methyl-2-pentanone 108101 24,000 ND 0.84 

Toluene 108883 44,000 43 4.8 

2-Hexanone 591786 250 ND 0.72 

Tetrachloroethene 127184 170 ND 47 

Ethyl benzene 100414 640 18 1.1 

1,3 ,5 -Trimethylbenzene 108678 1,500 1.2 0.36 

1 ,2,4-Trimethy I benzene 95636 1,500 2.6 1.1 

Xylenes, Total 1330207 760 80 4.2 

Other various VOCs V/wC V/xC ND ND 

NOTES: 
1. Analytical results compared to MDEQ criteria presented in Administrative Rules for Part 201, Environmental Remediation, of the Natural Resources and Environmental Protection Act, 1994 PA 451 , 

2. Concentrations reported in ppb (parts per billion or ug!kg). 

3. Detected results shown in BOLD. 

4. * = GSI Protection was calculated for the indicated metals using the MDEQ spreadsheet for calculating GSL A default water hardness value of 150 mg/kg as CaC03 was used to calculate GSI. 



Appendix B 

Environmental 
& Engin ering 

ENVIRONMENTAL Services 



5Foo1Conlourt 

~ FOIA But Aood EIDvt lians 

~ FEMA Crou Su-lbr. 

100 yr (de-tailed) • FEMA FIDodpllkl 

0 500yr·FEMA FloodpiM'I 

FLOODWAY • FEM A Fbodp'<lln 

S Blvd E 

Disclaimer: The informallon provided herewilh has been compiled from recorded 
deeds, plats, lax maps, surveys and other public records. II is not a legally recorded 
map or survey and is not intended to be used as one. Users should consull the 
information sources mentioned above when questions arise. FEMA Flooplaln data may 
no! always be present on the map. 

L. Brooks Patterson 
Oakland County Executive 

Oakland County One Stop Shop 2100 Ponbac Lake Road Bldg. 41 West Waterford, M/48328 Phone: 248-858-0721 Web: www.advantageoakland.com 



~ ~ " ~ ~ ~~ l 6 f 

!" § i i ~ , 
~ ~~ I! 

e ~ ~ i ~ t 
~ ,, 0 

; • H p. 
. ~ ~ .w J§ i 

~ 
~ 

;i e ~ ~ ~i 6 

i~ 
(/) Ed§ i ~ " ~ ~ • § • :;g 

~~ 
...J 

,,~ Sf ~ •~ d~ ~ :' r c~ ~ ~~ 0 • g ~ i6 ~ h ro 1 n f Fop • - ••• f- ~ 
.~ ~ ~ ~ .£ . § 

~ _; "'" ! i • § ~ 5~ g~ · - - l 

) I ! I IMO I D ~ O 
(/) 

~ 
~ •&' '@ 3@ !1a ~ ~ @] ~@ r ® ® 

:::J 
I= 
::> 

-,--·r-
: • h • I 
: . . 

~ 
~ 

i ~ 
I 

~ ~ 
! 

~ ~ 
i 

n i 
~ ~ 

I 
• 
~ q ~ " ! ~ ! ; ~ • ~ 
~ n 
~ 

- ' 

) e e 





AppendixC 

Environmental 
& Engineering 

ENVIRONMENTAL Services 



366-500 E South Blvd, Pontiac - Eligible Activities Cost Estimates 

Item/Activity Total Estimated Cost 
MDEQ Act 381 Eligible MSF Act 381 Eligible Local Only Act 381 

Activities Activities Eligible Activities 
Baseline Environmental Assessments 
Phase I ESA, Phase II ESA, SEA $ 12,150 $ 12,150 
Due Care Assessment and Report $ 9,950 $ 9,950 

Baseline Environmental Assessments Sub-Total $ 22,100 $ 22,100 
Due Care Activities 
Soil and/or Groundwater Evaluation for Onsite Management $ 20 ,000 $ 20,000 

Vapor Intrusion Assessment for Development Phases Two and Three $ 15,000 $ 15,000 
Vapor Intrusion Mitigation System Design and Installation Development Phase 

$ 160,000 $ 160,000 
Two 
Vapor Intrusion Mitigation System Design and Installation Development Phase 

$ 120,000 $ 120,000 
Three 
Due Care Activities Sub-Total $ 315 000 $ 315,000 
Demolition 
Disposal of Non-Reusable/Non-Recvclable Building Elements $ 100,000 $ 100,000 

Foundation Removal and Disposal $ 500,000 $ 500,000 
Fill/Compaction/Rough Grad ing to Balance Site where Improvements were 

$ 100,000 $ 100,000 
Located 
Professional Fees Related to Engineering & Design Work Directly Related to 

$ 35,000 $ 35,000 
Building and/or Site Demolition Activit ies 

Demolition Sub-Total $ 735,000 $ 735 000 
Site Preparation 
Geotechnical Engineering Including Investigating Existing Subsurface 
Conditions, Assessing Risks Posed by Site Conditions, Designing Earthworks $ 15,000 $ 15,000 
and Structure Foundations 
Relocation of Active Utilities $ 60,000 $ 60,000 

Temporary Traffic Control $ 15,000 $ 15,000 

Temporary Erosion Control $ 15,000 $ 15,000 
Grading (including reasonable mass grading of entire project site) $ 250,000 $ 250,000 

Site Preparation Sub-Total $ 355,000 $ 355 000 

Infrastructure Improvements 
Sidewalk Improvements $ 35,000 $ 35,000 

Curbs and Gutters $ 60,000 $ 60,000 
Professional Fees Related to Engineering & Design Work Directly Related to 

$ 50,000 $ 50,000 
Infrastructure Improvements 

Infrastructure Improvements Sub-Total $ 145 000 $ 145,000 
Preparation of Brownfield Plan I 
Brownfield Plan $ 20,000 $ 20,000 

Brownfield Sub-Total $ 20 000 $ 20,000 

Project Sub-Total $ 1,592,100 $ 22,100 $ 1,255,000 $ 315,000 i 

15% Continqency* $ 232,500 $ 185,250 $ 47,250 

Total Cost of Developer Eligible Activities to be Funded Through TIF $ 1,824,600 $ 22,100 $ 1,440,250 $ 362,250 

Capture for the LSRRF $ 100,000 $ 100,000 

Total Cost of Eligible Activities to be Funded ThrouQh TIF $ 1,924 600 $ 22,100 $ 1,440 250 $ 462,250 

*15% Contingency excludes preparation of Brownfield Plan/381 Work Plan and Baseline Environmental Assessments 



Appendix D 

Environmental 
& Engin ering 

ENVIRONMENTAL Services 



s 234,630 $ 

$ 
$ 

4.0400 $ 948 $ 
0.1 985 $ 47 $ 
3.1413 $ 737 $ 
1.5707 $ 369 $ 

11 .2737 $ 2,645 $ 
1.4091 $ 331 $ 
2.8183 $ 661 $ 
1.0000 $ 235 $ 
0.5000 $ 117 $ 
2.8700 $ 673 s 
0.2410 $ 57 $ 
0.2146 $ 50 $ 
0.9998 $ 235 $ 

30.2770 $ 7,104 $ 

18.0000 s 4,223 $ 
6.0000 s 1,408 $ 

24.0000 $ 5,631 $ 

54.2770 $ 12,735 $ 

0.~000 $ 94 $ 
0.0998 $ 23 s 
0 1996 $ 47 $ 
0.6994 $ 164 5 

54.97S4 $ 12,899 $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
s 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 362,250 $ 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 22,1 00 $ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 1,440,250 $ 

Year 1 
234,630 $ 
360,000 $ 
125,370 $ 

506 $ 
25 $ 

394 $ 
197 $ 

1,413 $ 
177 $ 
353 $ 
125 $ 
63 $ 

360 $ 
30 $ 
27 $ 

125 $ 
3,796 $ 

2,257 $ 
752 $ 

3,009 $ 

6,805 $ 

50 $ 
],; $ 
25 $ 
sa $ 

6,892 $ 

3,796 $ 
3,009 $ 
5,000 $ 

376 $ 
(1,204) $ 
2,633 

1,805 
1,805 

362,250 

-
22 
22 

22,078 

1,425 
1,425 

1,438,825 

Millages 
30.2770 
24.0000 

$ 

$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

Year 2 
234,630 

1,100,000 
865,370 

3,496 
172 

2,718 
1,359 
9,756 
1,219 
2,439 

865 
433 

2,484 
209 
186 
865 

26,201 

15,577 
5,192 

20,769 

46,970 

346 
86 

173 
605 

47, 575 

26,201 
20,769 

6,204 
2,596 

19.997 
18,173 

40,766 
42,570 

8,093 
354,157 

275 

218 
494 

21,584 

17,950 
14,229 
32,178 

1,406,647 

Percentage 

55.78% 
44.22% 

Year3 
$ 234,630 
$ 1,111,000 
s 876,370 

$ 3,541 
$ 174 
$ 2,753 
$ 1,377 
$ 9,880 
$ 1,235 
$ 2.470 
$ 876 
$ 438 
$ 2,515 
$ 211 
$ 188 
$ 876 
$ 26,534 

$ 15,775 
$ 5,258 
$ 21, 033 

$ 47,567 

s 31) 1 

s S7 
s 175 

s 613 

$ 48,180 

$ 26,534 
$ 21,033 
$ 5,000 
$ 2,629 
$ 21 ,534 
$ 18,404 

$ 42,567 
$ 85,137 

$ 8,451 

$ 345,705 

$ 288 

$ 228 
$ 516 
$ 21,069 

s 18,743 
$ 14,857 
s 33,600 
$ 1,373,047 

Year4 Year S YearS 
$ 234,630 $ 234,630 s 234,630 $ 
$ 1,900,000 s 1,919,000 $ 1,938,1 90 $ 
$ 1,665,370 $ 1,684,370 $ 1,703,560 $ 

$ 6,728 $ 6,805 $ 6,882 $ 
$ 331 $ 334 $ 338 $ 
$ 5,231 $ 5,291 s 5,351 $ 
$ 2,616 $ 2,646 $ 2,676 $ 
$ 18,775 $ 18,989 $ 19,205 $ 
$ 2,347 $ 2,373 $ 2,400 $ 
$ 4,694 $ 4,747 $ 4,801 $ 
$ 1,665 $ 1,684 $ 1,704 $ 
$ 833 $ 842 $ 852 $ 

s 4,780 $ 4,834 $ 4,889 $ 
$ 401 $ 406 $ 41 1 $ 
$ 357 $ 361 $ 366 $ 
$ 1,665 $ 1,684 $ 1,703 $ 
$ 50,422 $ 50,998 $ 51,579 $ 

$ 29,977 s 30,319 $ 30,664 $ 
$ 9,992 s 10,106 $ 10,221 $ 
$ 39,969 $ 40,425 $ 40,885 $ 

$ 90,391 $ 91 ,423 $ 92,464 $ 

$ 666 s or~ $ 68 1 $ 
s 166 s 168 $ 170 $ 
$ 332 s 336 $ 3·10 $ 
$ 1.165 $ 1,178 s 1.191 $ 

s 91,556 $ 92,60 I s 93,656 s 

$ 50,422 $ 50,998 $ 51,579 $ 
$ 39,969 $ 40,425 $ 40,885 $ 
$ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 
$ 4,996 $ 5,053 $ 5,111 $ 
$ 45,422 $ 45,998 $ 46,579 $ 
$ 34,973 $ 35,372 $ 35,775 $ 

$ 85,391 $ 86,423 $ 87,464 s 
$ 170,528 $ 256,951 $ 344,415 $ 

$ 16,953 $ 17,158 $ 17,365 $ 

$ 328,752 $ 311,594 $ 294,229 $ 

$ 577 $ 564 $ 591 $ 
$ 457 $ 463 $ 460 $ 

$ 1,034 $ 1,047 $ 1,059 $ 
$ 20,035 $ 18,988 $ 17,928 $ 

$ 37,599 $ 38,053 $ 38,512 $ 
$ 29,804 $ 30,164 $ 30,528 $ 
$ 67,404 $ 68,218 $ 69,040 $ 
$ 1,305,643 $ 1,237,425 $ 1,1 68,386 $ 

Year7 YearS Year 9 Year 10 Year 11 Year 12 Year 13 
234,630 $ 234,630 $ 234,630 $ 234,630 $ 234,630 $ 234,630 $ 234,6 

1,957,572 $ 1,977,148 $ 1,996,919 $ 2,016,888 s 2,037,057 $ 2,057,428 $ 2,078,0 
1,722,942 $ 1,742,518 $ 1.762,289 $ 1,782,258 $ 1,802,427 $ 1,822,798 $ 1,843,3 

6,961 $ 7,040 $ 7,120 $ 7,200 $ 7,282 $ 7,364 $ 7,4 
342 $ 346 $ 350 $ 354 $ 358 $ 362 $ 3 

5,412 $ 5,474 $ 5,536 $ 5,599 $ 5,662 $ 5,726 $ 5,7 
2,706 $ 2,737 $ 2,768 $ 2,799 $ 2,831 $ 2,863 $ 2,8 

19,424 $ 19,645 $ 19,868 $ 20,093 $ 20,320 $ 20,550 $ 20.7 
2,428 $ 2,455 $ 2,483 $ 2,511 $ 2,540 $ 2,569 $ 2,5 
4,856 $ 4,911 $ 4,967 $ 5,023 $ 5,080 $ 5,137 $ 5,1 
1,723 $ 1,743 $ 1,762 $ 1,782 $ 1,802 $ 1,823 $ 1,8 

861 $ 871 $ 881 $ 891 $ 901 $ 911 $ 9 
4,945 $ 5,001 $ 5,058 $ 5,115 $ 5,173 $ 5,231 $ 5,2 

415 $ 420 $ 425 $ 430 $ 434 $ 439 $ 4 
370 $ 374 $ 378 $ 382 $ 387 $ 391 $ 3 

1,723 $ 1,742 $ 1,762 $ 1,782 $ 1,802 $ 1,822 $ 1.8 
52,166 $ 52,758 $ 53,357 $ 53,961 $ 54,572 $ 55,189 $ 55,8 

31,013 $ 31 ,365 $ 31,721 $ 32,081 $ 32.444 $ 32,810 $ 33,1 
10,338 $ 10,455 $ 10,574 $ 10,694 $ 10,815 $ 10,937 $ 11,0 
41,351 $ 41,820 $ 42,295 $ 42,774 $ 43,258 $ 43,747 $ 44,2 

93,516 $ 94,579 $ 95,652 $ 96,736 $ 97,830 $ 98,936 $ 100,0 

689 s G9 f $ 70S $ (13 $ 721 $ {~9 $ 7 
172 s 174 $ 17il $ 173 $ ISO $ 182 $ I 
344 s 348 $ 352 $ 356 $ 3030 $ 364 $ J 

1.205 s 1,219 $ ·1,233 $ 1,2-17 $ 1,26 1 $ 1,275 $ 1,2 

94.721 s 95,797 $ 96,884 $ 97,982 $ 99,091 $ 100,211 $ 101,3 

52.166 $ 52,758 $ 53,357 $ 53,961 $ 54,572 $ 55,189 $ 55,8 
41 ,351 $ 41,820 $ 42,295 $ 42,774 $ 43.258 $ 43,747 $ 44,2 

5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,0 
5,169 $ 5,228 $ 5,287 $ 5,347 $ 5,407 $ 5.468 $ 5,5 

47,166 $ 47,758 $ 48,357 $ 48,961 $ 49,572 $ 50,189 $ 50,8 
36,182 $ 36,593 $ 37,008 $ 37,427 $ 37,851 $ 38,279 $ 38,7 

88,516 $ 89,579 $ 90,652 $ 91,736 $ 92,830 $ 93,936 $ 95,0 
432,931 $ 522,510 $ 613,1 62 $ 704,897 $ 797,728 $ 891 ,664 $ 986,7 

17,574 $ 17,785 $ 17,998 $ 18,213 $ 18,430 $ 18,650 $ 18,8 

276,656 $ 258,871 $ 240,873 $ 222,660 $ 204,230 $ 185,580 $ 166,7 

598 $ 605 $ 612 $ 620 $ 627 $ 635 $ 6 

474 $ 480 $ 486 $ 491 $ 497 $ 503 s 5 
1,072 $ 1,085 $ 1,098 $ 1,111 $ 1,124 $ 1,138 $ 1,1 

16,856 $ 15,771 $ 14,673 $ 13,562 $ 12,438 $ 11,300 $ 10,1 

38,975 $ 39,443 $ 39.916 $ 40 ,393 $ 40,875 s 41,362 $ 41,8 
30,895 $ 31 ,266 $ 31,640 $ 32,01 9 $ 32,401 $ 32,787 $ 33,1 
69,870 s 70,709 $ 71,556 $ 72.412 $ 73,276 $ 74,148 $ 75,0 

1,098,515 $ 1,027,806 $ 956,250 $ 883,839 $ 810,563 $ 736,414 $ 661,3 



Year 21 Year 22 Year 23 Year 24 

$ 234,630 s 234,630 $ 234,630 $ 234,630 
$ 2,250,176 $ 2,272,660 $ 2,295,407 $ 2,316,361 
s 2,015,546 $ 2.036,050 s 2,060,777 $ 2.083,731 

$ 6,143 $ 6,234 $ 6,326 $ 6,416 $ 166,021 
$ 400 $ 405 $ 409 $ 414 $ 6,157 
$ 6,331 $ 6,402 s 6,474 $ 6.546 $ 129,090 
$ 3,166 $ 3,201 $ 3,237 s 3,273 $ 64,547 
$ 22,723 $ 22,976 $ 23,233 s 23,491 $ 463,285 
$ 2,640 $ 2,672 $ 2,904 $ 2,936 $ 57,906 
$ 5,660 $ 5,744 $ 5,808 $ 5,873 $ 115,616 
$ 2,016 $ 2,036 $ 2,061 $ 2,084 $ 41,094 
$ 1.008 $ 1,019 $ 1,030 $ 1,042 $ 20,547 

$ 5.785 s 5.849 $ 5,914 $ 5,980 $ 117,941 
$ 466 s 491 $ 497 $ 502 $ 9,904 
$ 433 $ 437 $ 442 $ 447 $ 6,619 
$ 2,015 $ 2,036 $ 2,060 $ 2,063 $ 41,066 

s 61,025 $ 61,706 $ 62,394 $ 63,089 $ 1,244,214 

$ 36,280 $ 36,685 $ 37.094 $ 37,507 $ 739,696 
$ 12,093 $ 12.226 $ 12,365 $ 12,502 $ 246.566 
$ 48,373 $ 48,913 $ 49,459 $ 50,010 $ 986,264 

$ 109,398 $ 110,619 $ 111,853 $ 113,099 $ 2,230,478 

s BO€ $ P. IS s 824 ~ 833 $ 16 438 
s 201 $ 2tJJ s 206 ~ 208 g 4,10'1 
s 402 $ 401 s 4 11 $ 416 * 8.202 
$ 1,410 $ 1.425 s 1,441 s 1,457 $ 28.74 1 

s 110,803 s 1 12,045 $ 113.294 $ 114.556 $ 2,259,219 

$ 61,025 $ 61.706 $ 62,394 $ 63,089 s 1,244,214 
$ 48,373 $ 48,913 $ $ . $ 886,796 
$ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ 121,204 
$ 6,047 $ 6,114 $ $ $ 110,850 

s 56,025 $ 56,706 $ 57,394 $ 58,089 $ 1,123,010 

$ 42.327 $ 42,799 $ . $ $ 775,947 

$ 104,398 $ 105,619 $ 57,394 $ 58,089 $ 2,009,806 
$ 1,788,703 $ 1,894,322 $ 1,951,717 $ 2,009,806 

$ 20,727 s 7,485 $ 362,250 

$ 7,485 $ 

$ 705 $ 255 $ 12,328 

$ 559 $ 180 $ Y,l /2 
$ 1,264 $ 435 $ 22,100 

$ 435 $ 

$ 45,968 $ 16,601 $ 803,406 

$ 36,438 $ 11,734 $ 636,844 

$ 82,407 $ 28,335 $ 1,440,250 
$ 28,335 $ 

$ 50,000 s 50,000 $ 100,000 



Appendix 



Legal Description: 366 SOUTH BLVD E PONTIAC, Ml Parcel Number: 64-19-04-226-001 

T2N, R10E, SEC 04 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO. 98 ALL THAT PT OF LOTS 1 & 2 DESC AS BEG 
AT THE NW COR OF LOT 1 TH ELY ALG NL Y LOT LINES 580.1 FT TH S 02-
09-01 E 85.6 FT TO NLY WALL OF BLDG TH N 87-50-59 E ALG SO NLY WALL 40.75 FT TO 
ELY L1 OF BRICK WALL TH S 02-09-01 E ALG SO ELY L1 OF WALL 267FT M 

Legal Description: 400 SOUTH BLVD E PONTIAC, Ml Parcel Number: 64-19-04-226-003 

T2N, R10E, SEC 4 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO 98 PART OF LOTS 1 & 2 BEG ON N LINE OF 
LOT 2 DIST N 87-50-59 E 180.10 FT FROM NW COR OF LOT 2, TH S 02-09-01 E 
85.60 FT TON WALL OF BLDG, TH N 87-50-59 E 40.75 FT TO BRICK WALL DIVIDING 
BLDG,TH S 02-09-01 E 267FT, TH N 87-51-14 E 478.07 FT, TH N 02-08-46 W 
15FT, TH N 87-51-14 E 244FT, TH N 02-09-01 W 337.16 FT, TH S 87-50-59 W 762.82 FT TO 
BEG EXC NL Y 17 FT IN ST WIDENING 

Legal Description: 500 SOUTH BLVD E PONTIAC, Ml Parcel Number: 64-19-04-226-013 

T2N, R10E, SEC 4 ASSESSOR'S PLAT NO 98 PART OF LOT 2 BEG AT PT DIST S 87-50-59 
E 942.92 FT FROM NW LOT COR, TH S 87-50-59 E 300FT, TH S 02-09-01 W 
290.18 FT, TH S 16-11-11 W 41.23 FT, TH N 87-51-14 W 290FT, TH N 02-09-01 E 337.16 FT 
TO BEG EXC NLY 17FT TAKEN FOR RD 



OAKLAND COUNTY EXECUTIVE L. BROOKS PATTERSON 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
& COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

November 22, 2016 

Dear NO HAZ Consortium member: 

Bret Rasegan, Manager - Planning 
Office: (248) 858-5445 1 raseganb@oakgov.com 

Attached please find the 2017 NO HAZ program lnterlocal agreement to be formally considered by your 
Board or Council during your December or January meetings. There are a few changes from the 2016 
lnterlocal agreement, so I am also attaching a marked up copy of last year's lnterlocal to compare the 
changes between the two. 

A resolution is attached which approves the agreement as well as ensures that each community 
appoints a representative to the NO HAZ Advisory Board. It also lists whether your community wishes 
to charge residents $10, $15 or to not charge them at the collection events in 2017. 

Please send the following back no later than January 31, 2017: 

);;> two signed copies of the lnterlocal Agreement (note that on the front page and page 13 
you need to fill in an address) 

);;> signed resolution 
);;> copy of meeting minutes (you can send draft minutes) 

Information should be sent to the following address: 

Oakland County Economic Development & Community Affairs 
Attn: Whitney Calio 
2100 Pontiac Lake Road, Bldg. 41W 
Waterford, Ml48328-0409 

Feel free to contact Whitney Calio of my staff at 248-858-2071 or at caliow@oakgov.com if you need · 
additional information or if there is a problem in meeting the deadline. Thank you for your participation 
in the NO HAZ program. I look forward to working with you next year. 

Sincerely, 

Bret Rasegan, Manager 
Oakland County Planning 

2100 Pontiac Lake Road I County Executive Building 41W 1 Waterford, Ml48328 1 Fax (248) 452-20391 AdvantageOakland.com 



THE NORTH OAKLAND 
HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE CONSORTIUM 

WHEREAS, the northern cities, villages, and townships in Oakland County are committed to 
protection of the natural environment and preventing toxic materials from entering our 
waterways and landfill resources; and 

WHEREAS, the improper handling and disposal of toxic and poisonous household chemicals 
also poses a health risk to our citizens; and 

WHEREAS, recognizing there is a need to provide regular and easily accessible household 
hazardous waste collection services to North Oakland County residents; and 

WHEREAS, collection events for household hazardous waste have become widely accepted 
as the best way to provide citizens with a safe method of disposal of these toxic and 
poisonous household chemicals, and for the communities to realize the economies of scale, 
and 

WHEREAS, Oakland County, through its Waste Resource Management Division, has joined 
these northern Oakland County communities in creating the North Oakland Household 
Hazardous Waste Consortium (NO HAZ), and 

WHEREAS, the NO HAZ Consortium has developed a household hazardous waste collection 
program, and 

WHEREAS, a NO HAZ lnterlocal Agreement has been drafted to address necessary legal, 
liability, and responsibility issues for both the County and the participating communities, and 
identifies Oakland County's role in administering and managing the NO HAZ program, and, 

WHEREAS, the NO HAZ lnterlocal agreement establishes a NO HAZ advisory board to 
assist and advise Oakland County in the development of the NO HAZ program. 

Now Therefore be it Resolved: That our community, , 
hereby approves the attached NO HAZ lnterlocal Agreement and authorizes its signature, 
and 

Be it Further Resolved: That we will charge residents $10 to participate in NO HAZ events in 
2017, and 

Be it Further Resolved: That we hereby appoint as our 
official representative to the NO HAZ Advisory Board, to work with the Oakland County 
Waste Resource Management Division as needed to plan the NO HAZ program for 2017. 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly adopted by 
the , at a regular meeting held on 



NORTH OAKLAND COUNTY HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE 
INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN 
OAKLAND COUNTY 

AND 
[NAME OF MUNICIPALITY] 

This Interlocal Agreement ("the AGREEMENT") is made between Oaldand County, a 
Constitutional and Municipal Corporation, 1200 North Telegraph, Pontiac, Michigan 
48341 ("COUNTY"), and [Name and Address of Municipality] _______ _ 
_____________________ ("MUNICIPALITY"). 
In this AGREEMENT the COUNTY and the MUNICIPALITY may also be referred to 
individually as "Party" or jointly as "Parties." 

1. INTRODUCTORY STATEMENTS 

1.1 The northern cities, villages and townships of Oakland COUNTY are 
committed to protection of the natural environment and preventing toxic 
materials from entering their waterways and landfill resources. 

1.2 In order to accomplish this goal, there is a need to provide regular and 
easily accessible household hazardous waste collection services to north 
Oaldand COUNTY residents. 

1.3 These northern cities, villages and townships have sought the COUNTY'S 
assistance in coordinating a household hazardous waste collection program. 

1.4 The COUNTY has agreed to assist these communities by coordinating and 
facilitating this AGREEMENT in order to form a comprehensive household 
hazardous waste management program. 

1.5 This interlocal AGREEMENT will allow participating communities to 
obtain economic benefits of scale, without placing an undue burden on any 
one community, in the provision of a coordinated program of household 
hazardous waste collection and disposal. Residents of these communities 
will enjoy access to a coordinated, convenient, ongoing collection program 
supported by an aggressive educational program regarding the hazards of 
household hazardous wastes and their proper re-use and disposal. 

2. PURPOSE OF AGREEMENT Pursuant to the Urban Cooperation Act of 1967, 
1967 PA 7, MCL 124.501 et seq., the COUNTY and the MUNICIPALITY enter into this 
AGREEMENT for the purpose of developing a comprehensive household hazardous 
waste management program ("Program") that will meet the following goals and 
objectives. 

1 



3. GOALS OF THE PROGRAM: 

3.1 To provide regular, reliable and easily accessible household hazardous 
waste collection services to the residents of northern Oaldand COUNTY. 
The Program will help prevent toxic materials from entering Oakland 
COUNTY'S waterways, water tables, and landfill resources and help to 
remove them from potentially hazardous situations in area households. 

3.2 To establish, coordinate, and promote an educational program to inform 
residents about re-use, return, and reduction of potentially hazardous 
materials, bolster community spirit, and educate residents about 
environmentally sensitive behavior in general. 

4. OBJECTIVES OF THE PROGRAM: 

4.1 Increase public awareness of return, disposal, and source reduction options. 

4.2 Initiate a reliable, regular, and convenient collection program for household 
hazardous waste collection; 

4.3 Promote knowledge of program requirements; 

4.4 Help divert significant quantities of household hazardous materials from 
landfills; 

4.5 Help return significant quantities of potentially household hazardous 
materials to point of purchase or recycling outlets for proper disposition; 
and 

4.6 Collect data about the amount and type of household hazardous materials in 
north Oaldand COUNTY and their ultimate disposition. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises, obligations, 
representations, and assurances in this AGREEMENT, the Parties agree to the following: 

5. DEFINITIONS The following words and expressions used throughout this 
AGREEMENT, whether used in the singular or plural, within or without 
quotation marks, or possessive or non-possessive, shall be defmed, read, and 
interpreted as follows: 

5.1 "ACCEPTABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE" shall be defined as any and 
all forms of HAZARDOUS WASTE that the HAZARDOUS WASTE 
VENDOR specifically agrees to collect and properly dispose of and/or 
recycle at any and all collection events throughout this program. 

5.2 "ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS" shall be defined as any and all Program 
costs, expenses, wages, salaries, fringe benefit costs, equipment, supplies, 
administrative overhead, building costs, or any costs and expenses that are 
incurred and/or paid by the COUNTY in the administration of this 
program. Administrative Costs and HAZARDOUS WASTE 
COLLECTION COSTS are mutually exclusive cost categories. 

2 



5.3 "AGENT" OR "AGENTS" of the COUNTY or the MUNICIPALITY, 
shall be defined to include any and all of that Party's officers, elected 
officials, appointed officials, directors, board members, council members, 
authorities, boards, committees, commissions, employees, managers, 
departments, divisions, volunteers, AGENTS, representatives, and/or any 
such persons' successors or predecessors, employees, attorneys, or auditors 
(whether such persons act or acted in their personal, representative, or 
official capacities), and/or any and all persons acting by, through, under, or 
in concert with any of them. AGENT shall also include any person who 
was an AGENT at any time during this AGREEMENT but for any reason 
is no longer employed, appointed, or elected in that capacity. AGENT, as 
defmed for any purpose in this AGREEMENT, shall NOT include the 
HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR. 

5.4 "AGREEMENT" means the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT, 
Exhibits A and B referenced below and any other mutually agreed to and 
properly executed modification, amendment, addendum, or change order. 

5.4.1. Exhibit A 

5.4.2. Exhibit B 

(ADMINISTRATIVE and HAZARDOUS WASTE 
COLLECTION COSTS) 

(Population statistics and estimates of percentage of 
total participation in program contributed by 
MUNICIPALITY used to calculate 
ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS of this program for 
participating MUNICIPALITIES). 

5.5 "CLAIM(S)" means any alleged losses, claims, complaints, demands for 
relief or damages, suits, causes of action, proceedings, judgments, 
,deficiencies, liability, penalties, litigation, costs, and/or expenses of any 
kind which are imposed upon, incurred by, or asserted against a Party. 

5.6 "COLLECTION SCHEDULE" means the dates scheduled for hazardous 
waste collection services throughout North Oakland County. Oakland 
County will schedule dates and times for hazardous waste collection 
services for the 2017 year program in cooperation with the NO HAZ 
Board. 

5.7 "COLLECTION SITE PROTOCOL" shall be a clearly defmed set of 
operating procedures for every scheduled hazardous waste collection event. 
This protocol shall clearly define the duties and responsibilities of the 
HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR, COUNTY, and MUNICIPALITY at 
each collection event. The protocol shall clearly provide that the 
HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR is solely responsible for the collection, 
sorting, transport and proper disposition of all ACCEPTABLE 
HAZARDOUS WASTE collected at an event. The COUNTY has 
developed this protocol in consultation with the NO HAZ VENDOR and 
NO HAZ BOARD, and will update as needed or requested by the parties 

3 



5.8 "COUNTY" means Oaldand County, a Municipal and Constitutional 
Corporation including, but not limited to, all of.its departments, divisions, 
the County Board of Commissioners, elected and appointed officials, 
directors, board members, council members, commissioners, authorities, 
committees, employees, AGENTS, subcontractors, volunteers, and/or any 
such persons' successors. 

5.9 "HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR" shall be defined as the vendor 
selected by the COUNTY to perform hazardous waste collection services 
on behalf of participating municipalities. The HAZARDOUS WASTE 
VENDOR will conduct and oversee household hazardous waste collection 
events throughout. northern Oakland County. The vendor will be 
responsible for all core operations at each event including ·receiving and 
handling of household hazardous wastes, waste characterization, 
manifestation and ultimate disposition of materials collected. The vendor 
will assume all liability for ACCEPTABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE once 
collected. 

5.10 "HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION COSTS" shall be defined as 
any and all actual amounts paid to the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR 
by the COUNTY on behalf of participating MUNICIPALITIES for the 
collection and disposal of ACCEPTABLE HAZARDOUS WASTE. 

5.11 "MUNICIPALITY" as defmed above also includes, without limitation, its 
Council, any and all of its departments, its divisions, elected and appointed 
officials, directors, board members, council members, commissioners, 
authorities, committees, employees, AGENTS, subcontractors, volunteers, 
and/or any such persons' successors. 

5.12 "NORTH OAKLAND HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE 
ADVISORY BOARD" ("NO HAZ BOARD") means an advisory board 
made up of one appointed representative from each participating 
MUNICIPALITY. This board shall provide counsel and recommendations 
to the COUNTY regarding the operation and administration of this 
Program. 

5.13 "PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITY" means a city, village or 
township that has agreed to participate in the North Oaldand Household 
Hazardous Waste Program. Municipal participation shall be evidenced by 
a duly executed Interlocal Agreement between Oakland County and a city, 
village or township. 

5.14 "PROGRAM HOST" means any entity, public or private, which has 
agreed to allow the COUNTY, the PARTICIJ>ATING 
MUNICIPLALITIES, and the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR to 
conduct a hazardous waste collection event on its premises. 

6. COUNTY RESPONSIBILITIES Subject to the terms and conditions contained 
in this AGREEMENT, and applicable changes in law, the COUNTY shall carry 
out the following: 

4 



6.1 The COUNTY shall be responsible for development and operation of the 
Program and shall enter into contracts for the benefit of the Program. Such 
contracts include, but are not limited to, a contract with the HAZARDOUS 
WASTE VENDOR. 

6.2 The COUNTY, together with the NO HAZ BOARD, will monitor the 
services and activities of the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR in order to 
insure that all terms and conditions of the HAZARDOUS WASTE 
VENDOR contract are satisfied. The COUNTY will take whatever steps 
are reasonably necessary, in its sole discretion, to modify or correct a 
deficiency in the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR service and/or to 
enforce or terminate the agreement in the event of default by the 
HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR. 

6.3 The COUNTY shall be responsible for selecting dates and locations for 
hazardous waste collection services with the recommendation of the NO 
HAZBOARD. 

6.4 The COUNTY, in consultation with the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR 
and NO HAZ BOARD, shall develop a COLLECTION SITE PROTOCOL 
for hazardous waste collection events within the MUNICIPALITY. 

6.5 The COUNTY, in consultation with the NO HAZ BOARD, shall formulate 
a survey to be filled out by MUNICIPAL residents upon their arrival at a 
scheduled collection event. This survey will require residents to provide 
their name and address (including street, city or township and zip code). 
Information gathered within this survey shall only be used for reasons 
directly related to the administration of the NO HAZ program including, 
but not limited to, the calculation of HAZARDOUS WASTE 
COLLECTION COSTS for PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITIES. Each 
NO HAZ BOARD member shall have the right at any time to review the 
addresses of participants to verify all are located within the 
MUNICIPALITY. All personal identifying information collected from 
MUNICIPAL residents shall be regarded as confidential and will not be 
released by the COUNTY, the MUNICIPALITY or a NO HAZ BOARD 
member except as required by law or court order. 

6.6 The COUNTYshall provide educational support for the Program. 

7. MUNICIPALITY'S RESPONSIBILITIES 

7.1 Upon approval of this agreement, the MUNICIPALITY shall appoint a 
MUNICIPAL AGENT to the NO HAZ BOARD to represent its interests. 
This Board member shall be available to assist the COUNTY, as necessary, 
in the administration of the program within the MUNICIPALITY. 

7.2 Each MUNICIPALITY will provide MUNICIPAL AGENT(S) to work at 
each collection event as the Parties agree that many workers are needed to 
make each coliection event run smoothly. The MUNICIPAL AGENT(S) 
provided shall assist the COUNTY and HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR 
in the set-up and operation of hazardous waste collection events. Such 

5 



assistance may include, but is not limited to, traffic control, greeting 
residents, administering surveys, and accepting donations on behalf of the 
Program. Under no circumstances will a MUNICIPAL AGENT accept, 
handle, dispose of, or otherwise come into contact with household 
hazardous waste. The MUNICIPALITY will provide the following 
numbers of MUNICIPAL AGENTS for each scheduled collection event 
based upon the most recent census figures available: 

7.2.1 A MUNICIPALITY with a population of 30,000 or less will 
provide one MUNICIPAL AGENT at each scheduled collection 
event. A MUNICIPALITY with a population of 30,001 or more is 
required to provide two MUNICIPAL AGENTS at each scheduled 
collection event. One additional MUNICIPAL AGENT will be 
provided by each MUNICIPALITY for the collection event held at 
Oakland University. 

7.3 In the event that a MUNICIPALITY fails to supply the required 
MUNICIPAL AGENTS to work at any given collection event, the 
MUNICIPALITY will be assessed the following fees based upon the most 
recent available census figures. 

7.3.1 A MUNICIPALITY that had 125 participants or less at the 
2016NO HAZ events will be assessed $50.00 per collection event 
in 2017. 

7.3.2 A MUNICIPALITY that had more than 126 but less than 401 total 
participants at the 2016NO HAZ events will be assessed $125.00 
per collection event in 2017. 

7.3.3 A MUNICIPALITY that had 401 or more total participants at the 
2016 NO HAZ events will be assessed $250.00 per collection 
event in 2017. 

7.3.4 In the event a PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITY that is new to 
the Program in 2017 fails to provide the required MUNICIPAL 
AGENT(S) at a scheduled collection event, the MUNICIPALITY 
will be assessed a fee of $50.00 per event if it has a population of 
less than 10,000, $125.00 per event if it has a population between 
10,001 and 50,000, and $250.00 per event if it has a population of 
50,001 ormore. 

8. MUNICIPAL AGENTS SHALL NOT BE DEEMED COUNTY 
EMPLOYEES The Parties agree that no MUNICIPALITY AGENT shall be 
considered a COUNTY employee or COUNTY AGENT for any purpose under 
this AGREEMENT. The MUNICIPALITY agrees that it shall be solely and 
completely liable for any and all MUNICIPALITY AGENTS' past, present, or 
future wages, compensation, overtime wages, expenses, fringe benefits, pension 
or retirement benefits, travel expenses, mileage allowances, training expenses, 
transportation costs, and/ or other allowances of reimbursements of any kind, 
including, but not limited to, workers' disability compensation benefits, 

6 



unemployment compensation, Social Security Act protections and benefits, any 
employment taxes and/or any other statutory or contractual right or benefit based 
on or in any way related to any MUNICIPALITY AGENT'S employment status. 
The MUNICIPALITY agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the COUNTY from 
and against any and all CLAIM(S) which are imposed upon, incurred by, or 
which are based upon, result from, or arise from, or are in any way related to, any 
MUNICIPALITY AGENT'S wages, compensation, benefits or other 
employment-related or based rights, including, but not limited to, those described 
in this Paragraph. 

9. NEITHER THE COUNTY OR MUNICIPALITY SHALL HANDLE OR 
DISPOSE OF HAZARDOUS WASTE Neither the MUNICIPALITY nor the 
COUNTY is responsible for handling or disposing of household hazardous waste. 
This function will be performed solely by the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR. 

10. MUNICIPALITY MAY LIMIT PARTICIPATION OF RESIDENTS If a 
MUNICIPALITY decides to limit the number of residents it will allow to 
participate at one or more collection events, the MUNICIPALITY will identify a 
method to limit such participation (which may include, for example, a voucher, 
pre-registration or other reasonable process). The MUNICIPALITY must 
communicate the process it intends to use to limit resident participation to the 
COUNTY in advance of a collection event to ensure smooth enforcement of this 
process and to allow the COUNTY ample time to communicate the process to 
potential resident participants in applicable advertising regarding upcoming 
events. 

11. PARTICIPATION FEES A MUNICIPALITY may charge participating 
residents a fee to participate in NO HAZ events. This fee will be collected by the 
COUNTY at the NO HAZ events unless other arrangements have been made with 
the COUNTY in advance. The fee shall be $10 or $15 and the MUNICIPALITY 
will indicate via resolution whether or not a fee is to be charged, and if so, the 
amount. 

12. FINANCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES 

12.1 The COUNTY, subject to the terms of this AGREEMENT, will advance 
such funds as are necessary to pay the HAZARDOUS WASTE 
COLLECTION COSTS and ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS of the 
PROGRAM. The MUNICIPALITY shall repay the COUNTY in the 
following manner. 

12.2 The MUNICIPALITY shall repay the COUNTY a percentage of the total 
ADMINISTRATIVE COST of the PROGRAM. The MUNICIPALITY'S 
share of administrative costs under the program shall be the sum total of 
two different calculations. The first calculation, based upon MUNICIPAL 
population figures, represents half of the MUNICIPALITIES share of 
ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS under the program. This figure shall be 
based upon total MUNICIPAL population compared to the overall 
population of participating MUNICIPALITIES program-wide. For 
purposes of illustration without liniitation, if the MUNICIPALITY consists 

7 



of 1,000 residents and there are a total of 10,000 MUNICIPAL residents 
served program-wide, then the MUNICPALITY would pay 10 (ten) percent 
of this half of the PROGRAM'S total ADMINISTRATIVE COST. The 
second half of the MUNICIPALITY'S total ADMINISTRATIVE COST 
shall be the percentage of total MUNICIPAL participation compared to the 
overall participation of residents program-wide. For purposes of 
illustration without limitation, if 1,000 MUNICIPAL residents participate 
in the program and there are a total of 10,000 MUNICIPAL residents 
participating program-wide, then the MUNICIPALITY would pay 10 (ten) 
percent ofthis halfofthe ADMINISTRATIVE COST. 

. . 

12.2.1 If a MUNICIPALITY hosts a hazardous waste collection event as 
part of this program on municipally-owned property, the 
MUNICIPALITY shall be reimbursed by the COUNTY out of the 
program's administrative budget. The amount of money provided 
to reimburse a MUNICIPALITY for hosting a collection event 
shall be a set amount and will be determined by the NO HAZ 
BOARD. Any expenses incurred by a MUNICIPALITY which are 
beyond the amount determined by the NO HAZ BOARD to be 
appropriate for a collection event shall be the sole responsibility of 
the MUNICIPALITY. 

12.2.2 The MUNICIPALITY shall also repay the COUNTY a portion of 
the HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION COSTS. The 
HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION COSTS will be all costs 
paid by the COUNTY to the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR 
for collecting and disposing of a MUNICIPAL resident's 
hazardous waste material, less any fees collected at the NO HAZ 
events for this purpose. The MUNICIPALITY may cap its 
HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION COSTS by limiting the 
number of MUNICIPAL residents that may participate in 
collection events. The MUNICIPALITY shall advise the 
COUNTY of any such limitation upon MUNICIPAL resident 
participation. 

12.2.3 The COUNTY shall submit an invoice to the MUNICIPALITY 
itemizing all amounts due under this AGREEMENT for its share 
of ADMINISTRATIVE and HAZARDOUS WASTE 
COLLECTION COSTS. The MUNICIPALITY shall pay the 
invoice submitted to the COUNTY within thirty (30) days after 
receipt of the invoice. 

12.2.4 Except as expressly provided in this AGREEMENT, the COUNTY 
is not responsible for any cost, fee, fme or penalty incurred by the 
MUNICIPALITY in connection with this AGREEMENT. 

8 



13. MUNICIPALITY'S FAILURE TO PAY 

13.1 If the MUNICIPALITY, for any reason, fails to pay the COUNTY any 
monies when and as due under this AGREEMENT, the MUNICIPALITY 
agrees that unless expressly prohibited by law, the COUNTY or the 
County Treasurer, at their sole option, shall be entitled to setoff from any 
other MUNICIPALITY funds that are in the County's possession for any 
reason. Funds include but are not limited to the Delinquent Tax 
Revolving Fund ("DTRF"). Any setoff or retention of funds by the 
COUNTY shall be deemed a voluntary assignment of the amount by the 
MUNICIPALITY to the COUNTY. MUNICIPALITY waives any 
CLAIMS against the COUNTY or its Officials for any acts related 
specifically to the COUNTY'S offsetting or retaining such amounts. This 
paragraph shall not limit MUNICIPALITY'S legal right to dispute 
whether the underlying amount retained by the COUNTY was actually 
due and owing under this AGREEMENT. 

13.2 If the COUNTY chooses not to exercise its right to setoff or if any setoff 
is insufficient to fully pay the COUNTY any amounts due and owing the 
COUNTY under this AGREEMENT, the COUNTY shall have the right to 
charge up to the then-maximum legal interest on any unpaid amount. 
Interest charges shall be in addition to any other amounts due to the 
COUNTY under this AGREEMENT. Interest charges shall be calculated 
using the daily unpaid balance method and accumulate until all 
outstanding amounts and accumulated interest are fully paid. 

13.3 Nothing in this Section shall operate to limit the COUNTY'S right to 
pursue or exercise any other legal rights or remedies under this 
AGREEMENT against MUNICIPALITY to secure reimbursement or 
amounts due the COUNTY under this AGREEMENT. The remedies in 
this Section shall be available to the COUNTY on an ongoing and 
successive basis if the MUNICIPALITY at any time becomes delinquent 
in its payment. Notwithstanding any other term and condition in this 
AGREEMENT, if the COUNTY pursues any legal action in any court to 
secure its payment under this AGREEMENT, the MUNICIPALITY 
agrees to pay all costs and expenses, including attorney's fees and court 
costs, incurred by the COUNTY in the collection of any amount owed by 
MUNICIPALITY. 

14. EACH PARTY RESPONSIBLE FOR ITS OWN ACTIONS UNDER 
AGREEMENT 

14.1 Each Party shall be responsible for any CLAIMS made against that Party 
and for the acts of its Employees or AGENTS. 

14.2 In any CLAIMS that may arise from the performance of this 
AGREEMENT, each Party shall seek its own legal representation and bear 
the costs associated with such representation including any attorney fees. 

9 



14.3 Except as otherwise provided in this AGREE11ENT, neither Party shall 
have any right under any legal principle to be indemnified by the other 
Party or any of its employees or AGENTS in connection with any CLAIM. 

14.4 This AGREE11ENT does not, and is not intended to, impair, divest, 
delegate or contravene any constitutional, statutory, and/or other legal right, 
privilege, power, obligation, duty or immunity of the Parties. Nothing in 
this AGREEMENT shall be construed as a waiver of governmental 
immunity for either PARTY. 

15. HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR INDEMNIFICATION OF THE 
MUNICIPALITY 

15.1 The COUNTY shall require the following indemnification for participating 
MUNICIPALITIES within the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR 
CONTRACT: 

15.1.1 "The Contractor will protect, defend and indemnify the COUNTY, 
PROGRAM HOSTS, and all PARTICIPATING 
MUNICIPALITIES, together with their controllers, trustees, 
officers, agents, servants, volunteers, and employees from any and 
all liabilities, claims, liens, demands, and costs, of whatever kind 
and nature which may result in injury or death to any persons, and 
for loss or damage to any property, including property owned or in 
the care, custody or control of the COUNTY, PROGRAM HOSTS 
or PARTICIPATING MUNICIPALITIES in connection with or in 
any way incident to or arising out of the occupancy, use, service 
operations, performance, or non-performance of work in 
connection with this contract resulting in whole or in part from 
negligent acts or omissions of the Contractor, or any sub
contractor, or any employee, agent or representative of the 
Contractor or subcontractor." 

15 .1.2 "The indemnification rights contained in this Contract are in 
excess and over and above any valid and collectible insurance 
rights/policies." 

15 .1.3 "Contractor waives and releases all actions, liabilities, loss and 
damage including any subrogated rights it may have against the 
COUNTY, PROGRAM HOSTS, or PARTICIPATING 
MUNNICIP ALITIES based upon any CLAIM brought against the 
COUNTY, PROGRAM HOST, OR PARTICIPATING 
MUNICIPALITIES by a Contractor Employee." 

16. LENGTH OF AGREEMENT This AGREE11ENT shall become effective at 
12:01 A.M., January 1, 2017, and shall remain in effect continuously until it 
expires, without any further act or notice being required by either party, at 11:59 
P.M. on December 31, 2017. 

10 



17. TERMINATION OR CANCELLATION OF AGREEMENT Once the 
agreement commences (as described in section 11 above), the parties may only 
terminate this AGREEMENT as provided below: 

17.1 Either Party may terminate or cancel this AGREEMENT for any reason 
upon thirty (30) days' notice. The effective date for termination or 
cancellation shall be clearly stated in the notice. If the MUNICIPALITY 
terminates this AGREEMENT after commencement of the program, it shall 
nevertheless remain liable for its share of the ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 
and HAZARDOUS WASTE COLLECTION COSTS for the entire term of 
this Agreement. 

17.2 The COUNTY may cancel this AGREEMENT at any time should the 
MUNICIPALITY "default" on any obligation under this AGREEMENT. 
"Default" is defined as the failure of the MUNICIPALITY and/or any 
MUNICIPALITY AGENT to fulfill any MUNICIPALITY obligations 
under this AGREEMENT. If time permits, but not otherwise, the 
COUNTY shall notify the MUNICIPALITY in writing of any default and 
provide the MUNICIPALITY with an opportunity to correct the situation. 
If after a reasonable period to cure the default, the MUNICIPALITY has 
not corrected the circumstances giving rise to the notice, the COUNTY may 
cancel this AGREEMENT and terminate the MUNICIPALITY'S further 
participation in this program. 

18. SUSPENSION OF SERVICES Upon notice to the MUNICIPALITY and the. 
NO HAZ ADVISORY BOARD the COUNTY may immediately suspend this 
AGREEMENT if the MUNICIPALITY has failed to reasonably comply, within 
the COUNTY'S sole discretion, with federal, state, or local law, or any 
requirements contained in this AGREEMENT. The right to suspend services is in 
addition to the right to terminate or cancel this AGREEMENT contained in 
Section 13. The COUNTY shall not incur penalty, expense, or liability if services 
are suspended under this Section. · 

19. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY The Parties agree that the COUNTY used its 
best efforts and judgment when selecting a HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR 
for this program. The MUNICIPALITY agrees to waive any CLAIM(S) or 
liability against the COUNTY for any material defects, errors, mistakes, 
negligence, or omissions in the bid specifications, the bid procedure, the bid 
award process, the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR contract negotiation 
process, the preparation or execution of the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR 
contract, or any other errors or mistakes of fact by the COUNTY in the selection 
of the HAZARDOUS WASTE VENDOR. The MUNICIPALITY agrees that at 
all times and for all purposes under this AGREEMENT, the HAZARDOUS 
WASTE VENDOR relationship to the COUNTY shall be that of an Independent 
Contractor and not a COUNTY AGENT as defmed herein. The 
MUNICIPALITY hereby agrees to waive any CLAIM(S) or liability against the 
COUNTY based in any manner upon any act or omission of the HAZARDOUS 
WASTE VENDOR. 

11 



20. NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES Except as provided for the benefit of 
the Parties, this AGREEMENT does not and is not intended to create any 
obligation, duty, promise, contractual right or benefit, right to indemnification, 
right to subrogation, and/or any other right, in favor of any other person or entity. 

21. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS Each Party shall comply with all federal, state, 
and local statutes, ordinances, regulations, administrative rules, and requirements 
applicable to its activities performed under this AGREEMENT, including, but not 
limited to, the policies, procedures, rules and regulations attached as Exhibits to 
this AGREEMENT, and properly promulgated amendments to those Exhibits. 

22. DISCRIMINATION The Parties shall not discriminate against their. employees, 
AGENTS, applicants for employment, or another persons or entities with respect 
to hire, tenure, terms, conditions, and privileges of employment, or any matter 
directly or indirectly related to employment in violation of any federal, state or 
local law. 

23. PERMITS AND LICENSES Each Party shall be responsible for obtaining and 
maintaining, throughout the term of this AGREEMENT, all licenses, permits, 
certificates, and governmental authorizations necessary to perform all its 
obligations under this AGREEMENT. Upon request, a Party shall furnish copies 
of any permit, license, certificate or governmental authorization to the requesting 
Party. 

24. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS This AGREEMENT does not, and is not 
intended to impair, divest, delegate, or contravene any constitutional, statutory, 
and/or other legal right, privilege, power, obligation, duty, or immunity of the 
Parties. 

25. FORCE MAJEURE Each Party shall be excused from any obligations under 
this AGREEMENT during the time and to the extent that a Party is prevented 
from performing due to causes beyond such Party's control, including, but not 
limited to, an act of God, war, acts of government (other than the Parties'), fire, 
strike, labor disputes, civil disturbances, reduction of power source, or any other 
circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the affected Party. Reasonable 
notice shall be given to the affected Party of any such event. 

26. IN-KIND SERVICES. This AGREEMENT does not authorize any in-kind 
services, unless previously agreed to by the Parties and specifically listed herein. 

27. DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACT/ASSIGNMENT A Party shall not delegate, 
subcontract, and/or assign any obligations or rights under this AGREEMENT 
without the prior written consent of the other Party. A delegation, subcontract 
and/or assignment made without the prior written consent of the other Party is 
void. 

28. , NO IMPLIED WAIVER Absent a written waiver, no act, failure, or delay by a 
Party to pursue or enforce any rights or remedies under this AGREEMENT shall 
constitute a waiver of those rights with regard to any existing or subsequent 
breach of this AGREEMENT. No waiver of any term, condition, or provision of 
this AGREEMENT, whether by conduct or otherwise, in one or more instances, 

12 



shall be deemed or construed as a continuing waiver of any term, condition, or 
provision of this AGREEMENT. No waiver by either Party shall subsequently 
affect its right to require strict performance of this AGREEMENT. 

29. SEVERABILITY If a court of competent jurisdiction finds a term, or condition, 
of this AGREEMENT to be illegal or invalid, then the term, or condition, shall be 
deemed severed from this AGREEMENT. All other terms, conditions, and 
provisions of this AGREEMENT shall remain in full force. 

30. CAPTIONS The section and subsection numbers, captions, and any index to 
such sections and subsections contained in this AGREEMENT are intended for 
the convenience of the reader and are not intended to have any substantive 
meaning. The numbers, captions, and indexes shall not be interpreted or be 
considered as part of this AGREEMENT. Any use of the singular or plural 
number, any reference to the male, female, or neuter genders, and any possessive 
or non-possessive use in this AGREEMENT shall be deemed the appropriate 
plurality, gender or possession as the context requires. 

31. NOTICES Notices given under this AGREEMENT shall be in writing and shall 
be personally delivered, sent by express delivery service, certified mail, or first 
class U.S. mail postage prepaid, and addressed to the person listed below. Notice 
will be deemed given on the date when one of the following first occur: (1) the 
date of actual receipt; (2) the next business day when notice is sent express 
delivery service or personal delivery; or (3) three days after mailing first class or 
certified U.S. mail. 

31.1 If Notice is sent to the COUNTY, it shall be addressed and sent to: Oaldand 
County Waste Resource Management, 2100 Pontiac Lake Road, Bldg. 
41W, Waterford, MI 48328-0409 and Chairperson of the Oaldand County 
Board of Commissioners, 1200 North Telegraph, Pontiac, Michigan 48341. 

31.2 If Notice is sent to the MUNICIPALITY, it shall be addressed to: 

31.3 Either Party may change the address and/or individual to which Notice is 
sent by notifying the other Party in writing of the change. 

32. GOVERNING LAW/CONSENT TO JURISDICTION AND VENUE This 
AGREEMENT shall be governed, interpreted, and enforced by the laws of the 
State of Michigan. Except as otherwise required by law or court rule, any action 
brought to enforce, interpret, or decide any CLAIM arising under or related to this 
AGREEMENT shall be brought in the 6th Judicial Circuit Court of the State of 
Michigan, the 50th District Court of the State of Michigan, or the United States 
District Court for the Eastern District of Michigan, Southern Division, as dictated 
by the applicable jurisdiction of the court. Except as otherwise required by law or 
court rule, venue is proper in the courts set forth above. 

13 



33. AGREEMENT APPROVAL AND AMENDMENT 

33.1 This AGREEMENT shall not become effective prior to the approval by 
concurrent resolutions of the County Board of Commissioners and the 
governing Legislative Body of the MUNICIPALITY. The approval and 
terms of this AGREEMENT shall be entered in the official minutes and 
proceedings of the County Board of Commissioners and governing 
Legislative Body of the MUNICIPALITY and shall also be filed with the 
office of the Clerk for the County and the MUNICIPALITY. In addition, 
this AGREEMENT, and any subsequent amendments, shall be filed with 
the Secretary of State for the State of Michigan by the COUNTY and shall 
not become effective or implemented prior to its filing with the Secretary of 
State. 

33.2 Except as expressly provided herein, this AGREEMENT may be amended 
only by concurrent written resolutions of the County Board of 
Commissioners and the governing Legislative Body of the 
MUNICIPALITY. This AGREEMENT shall not be changed, 
supplemented, or amended except as provided for herein, and no other act, 
verbal representation, document, usage, or custom shall be deemed to 
amend or modify this AGREEMENT. 

34. ENTIRE AGREEMENT This AGREEMENT constitutes the complete and 
entire AGREEMENT between the COUNTY and MUNICIPALITY and fully 
supersedes any and all prior AGREEMENTS or contemporaneous representations 
or understandings, verbal or oral, between them concerning and in any way 
related to the subject matter of this AGREEMENT. It is further agreed that the 
terms and conditions herein are contractual and are not a mere recital and that are 
no other AGREEMENTS, understandings, contracts, or representations between 
the MUNICIPALITY and the COUNTY in any way related to the subject matter 
hereof, except as expressly stated herein. 

35. CONCLUSION: For and in consideration of the mutual promises, 
acknowledgements and representations set forth in this AGREEMENT, and for 
other good and valuable consideration, the adequacy of which is hereby 
acknowledged, the COUNTY and MUNICIPALITY hereby agree to be bound by 
the above terms and provisions. 

14 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, hereby aclmowledges that he has been 
authorized by a resolution of the , a certified copy 
of which is attached, to execute this AGREEMENT on behalf of the MUNICIPALITY 
and hereby accepts and binds the MUNICIPALITY to the terms and conditions of this 
AGREEMENT. 

EXECUTED: ______________________ _ DATE: ------

WITNESSED: _____________________ _ DATE: ------

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Chairperson of the Oaldand County Board of 
Commissioners, hereby aclmowledges that he has been authorized by a resolution of the 
Oaldand County Board of Commissioners, a certified copy of which is attached, to 
execute this AGREEMENT on behalf of the County of OAKLAND and hereby accepts 
and binds the COUNTY to the terms and conditions of this AGREEMENT. 

EXECUTED: ___________ __ DATE: ------
Michael Gingell, Chairperson 
Oakland County Board of Commissioners 

WITNESSED: ___________ __ DATE: -------

15 



EXHIBIT A 

2017 Projected NO HAZ Budget 

2017 NO HAZ Program Cost Details 

Program Management $26,382.00 

Collection Costs $5372.00 

Administration $1162.00 

Education and Outreach $14,500.00 

TOTAL $47,416.00 

2017 NO HAZ Hazardous Waste Disposal and Recycling Costs 

Per Vehicle Fee (including computer & electronic waste and *$36.15 each 
latex paintl 

This Estimate is based on holding five collection events. If more communities join the program than are expected, 
or communities drop from the program, the number of collections may be adjusted accordingly. Additional 
collection events will increase the administrative fee by approximately $5,000 each. Any additional collections will 
be agreed upon by the County and the NO HAZ Advisory Board. 

*If the vendor deems a vehicle to have an excessive amount of waste, additional charges may apply. 

16 



EXHIBIT B - 2017 Estimated Costs 

Population admin fee 
(2010 %of based on %of 

Municipality census) population population Cars participation 
$23,708.00 

Addison• 6,351 1.79% $423.55 118 2.24% 
Clarkston** 882 0.25% $58.82 26 0.49% 
Groveland* 5,476 1.54% $365.19 58 1.10% 
Independence• 34,681 9.76% $2,312.87 612 11.62% 
Lake AnQelus 290 0.08% $19.34 36 0.68% 
Oakland* 16,779 4.72% $1 '118.99 412 7.82% 
Orion 35,394 9.96% $2,360.42 1090 20.69% 
Oxford 20,526 5.77% $1,368.87 545 10.34% 
Pontiac• 59,515 16.74% $3,969.04 69 1.31% 
Rochester 12,711 3.58% $847.69 349 6.62% 
Rochester 
Hills** 70,995 19.97% $4,734.64 1,271 24.12% 
Rose• 6,250 1.76% $416.81 32 0.61% 
SprinQfield* 13,940 3.92% $929.65 189 3.59% 
Waterford* 71,707 20.17% $4,782.12 462 8.77% 

355,497 100.00% $23,708.00 5,269 100.00% .. . . 
• = Commumty charges part1c1pants $10 each to part1c1pate 1n NO HAZ events 
**=Community charges participants $15 each to participate in NO HAZ events 

Revenue 
admin fee HHW from $10 total 
based on disposal or $15 amount for 
#of cars fee charge program 

$23,708.00 $36.15 
$530.94 $4,265.70 $1,180.00 $4,040.19 
$116.99 $939.90 $390.00 $725.71 
$260.97 $2,096.70 $580.00 $2,142.87 

$2,753.71 $22,123.80 $6,120.00 $21,070.38 
$161.98 $1,301.40 $0.00 $1,482.72 

$1,853.80 $14,893.80 $4,120.00 $13,746.59 
$4,904.48 $39,403.50 $0.00 $46,668.40 
$2,452.24 $19,701.75 $0.00 $23,522.86 

$310.47 $2,494.35 $690.00 $6,083.86 
$1,570.33 $12,616.35 $0.00 $15,034.38 

$5,718.90 $45,946.65 $19,065.00 $37,335.18 
$143.98 $1 '156.80 $320.00 $1,397.60 
$850.41 $6,832.35 $1,890.00 $6,722.42 

$2,078.78 $16,701.30 $4,620.00 $18,942.20 
$23,708.00 $190,474.35 $38,975.00 $198,915.35 

(1.) This is only an estimate. The actual costs will be determined by which communities are members of NO HAZ in 2017, and the number of 
participants in the program from each of the member communities. 

(2.)The cost per vehicle including electronic waste is $36.15. 
(3.)The total administration fee is $47,416.00, which includes 5 collection events. 
(4.)The number of participants is estimated using the 2016 number of participants and adding 15%. 
(5.)0ne or two people from each community are required to work at each of the collection events. These costs are not factored into this 
estimate. 

Failure to provide a volunteer will result in charges as outlined in the interiocai agreement. These costs are not factored into this estimate. 
A representative from each community is also needed to attend meetings. These are held 1-3 times per year. Costs for this person are not 
factored into this estimate. 

(6.) if additional communities join the program, additional collections may be necessary. This would be decided upon by the County and 
NO HAZ Advisory Board, and would result in additional administration costs of approximately $5,000 per collection. 

17 



18 



BID TAB 

DATE & TIME: 

ACTIVITY: 

1 City Hall 

47450 Woodward Ave. 

(73,000 sf lot, 925 Lf sidewalk) 

2 Sheriff's Substation 

110 E. Pike Street 

(64,500 sf lot, 730 Lf sidewalk) 

3 Robert Bowen Center 

52 Bagley Street 

(42,600 sf lot, 440 Lf sidewalk) 

4 Ruth Peterson Center 

990 Joslyn Road 

(20,000 sf lot, 300 Lf sidewalk) 

5 50th District Court 

70 N. Saginaw 

(13,650 sf lot, 1010 Lf sidewalk) 

6 Walkway in front of Phoenix Center 

South side of Water Street 

between Saginaw and Mill 

(sidewalk only, 470 Lf sidewalk) 

7 Riverfront Park 

9 N. Saginaw 

(public sidewalk only, 60 Lf sdwlk) 

8 Vacant Property 

Lots at Oakland and N. Saginaw 

(Ceaser E Chavez/Saginaw) 

(sidewalks only, 140 Lf sidewalk) 

9 On Street Parking Spaces: 

Saginaw North of Plaza 

(121 spaces) 

10 Salt 

$ 

12/12/2016@ 2:00PM 

Snow Plowing Parking Lot & Sidewalks 

Ozell's Lanscaping & Snow Removal Auburn Hills, Ml 
Plowing Sidewalk Salting Removal 

NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID $ 

NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID $ 

NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID $ 

NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID $ 

NO BID NO BID NO BID NO BID $ 

NO BID NO BID 

NO BID NO.BID 

NO BID NO BID 

NO BID 

NO BID /ton I $ NO BID /man hr $ 

Redigan Outdoor Services, LLC Waterford, Ml PAVEX Corporation Trenton, Ml 

Plowing Sidewalk Salting Removal Plowing Sidewalk Salting 

200.00 $ 100.00 $ 225.00 $ 450.00 $ 1,200.00 $ 450.00 $ 500.00 $ 

245.00 $ 130.00 $ 320.00 $ 450.00 $ 1,100.00 $ 250.00 $ 300.00 $ 

1,300.00 $ 50.00 $ 140.00 $ 450.00 $ 800.00 $ 250.00 $ 300.00 $ 

80.00 $ 40.00 $ 95.00 $ 450.00 $ 440.00 $ 200.00 $ 250.00 $ 

50.00 $ 200.00 $ 225.00 $ 450.00 $ 500.00 $ 600.00 $ 550.00 $ 

$ 60.00 $ 55.00 $ 295.00 $ 100.00 

$ 30.00 $ 20.00 $ 225.00 $ 75.00 

$ 30.00 $ 20.00 $ 225.00 $ 75.00 

130.00 /ton $ 50.00 /man hr $ 145.00 /ton I $ 65.00 

Opened by City Clerk: Sherikia Hawkins Date: 12/12/16 @ 2:00 pm 
----~--~~----~----

Witness: Michelle McKenzie, Purchasing Agent 

Witness: John Balint, City Engineer 

Removal 

3,000.00 

2,100.00 

1,800.00 

820.00 

1,700.00 

/man hr I 



Consultant 

Nowak & Fraus Epgineers 

Johnson & Anderson, Inc. 

Rowe Professional Services Company 

Alfred Benesch & Company 

OHM Advisors 

Spalding DeDecker 

NTH Consultants, Ltd. 

Wm J. Popp Co., LLC 

Giffels Webster 

Anderson, Eckstein & Westrick, Inc. 

Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 

The Mannik & Smith Group, Inc. 

Total: 

R1 

70,00 

80.00 

60.00 

50.00 

20.00 

30.00 

20.00 

10.00 

70.00 

70.00 

100.00 

10.00 

J&A 
HRC 

Plan Review 
15% 

R2 R3 

100.00 95.00 

100.00 90.00 

- 0.00 

100.00 100.00 

25.00 80.00 

25.00 85.00 

- 0.00 

10.00 5.00 

100.00 98.00 

100.00 97.00 

75.00 99.00 

75.00 98.00 

Total 

88.33 

1~tl~l 
20.00 

83.33 

41.67 

46.67 

6.67 

8.33 

89.33 

89.00 

Jii~~i!'>? 
61.00 

Preliminary/Final Engineering 

R1 

100.00 

85.00 

90.00 

70.00 

10.00 

60.00 

60.00 

40.00 

80.00 

80.00 

100.00 

10.00 

NFE 
Benesch 

HRC 

15% 

i\2 R3 

75.00 90.00 
75.00 90.00 

- 80.00 

100.00 70.00 

75.00 70.00 

25.00 60.00 

- 40.00 
10.00 30.00 

25.00 95.00 

75.00 80.00 

75.00 100.00 

25.00 60.00 

Total 

~~· 

ll~~ll 
56.67 

80.00 

51.67 

48.33 

33.33 

26.67 

66.67 

78.33 

Vi!lt'Jit~~ 
31.67 

R1 

100.00 

90.00 

80.00 

-
60.00 

70.00 

-
80.00 

80.00 

100.00 

25.00 

NFE 
HRC 

Surveying 

5% 
R2 

100.00 

100.00 

-
50.00 

50.00 

-
-

100.00 

50.00 

100.00 

100.00 

R3 Total 

100.00 t~qil:Jq~ 
90.00 93.33 

85.00 55.00 

- 0.00 

60.00 56.67 

70.00 63.33 

- 0.00 

0.00 

70.00 83.33 

85.00 71.67 

90.00 l¥i95,~'i 
40.00 55.00 

Qualification Tabulation 

Construction Engineering 

R1 

60.00 

70.00 

100.00 

80.00 

40.00 

40.00 

-
-

80.00 

80.00 

90.00 

10.00 

Benesch 
AEW 
HRC 

20% 

R2 R3 

75.00 60.00 

50.00 80.00 
- 100.00 

100.00 85.00 

50.00 60.00 

50.00 60.00 

- -
20.00 -
50.00 70.00 

100.00 75.00 

100.00 85.00 

75.00 60.00 

Total 

65.00 

66.67 

66.67 

i:k1!!!:'3~;$Ji 
50.00 

50.00 

0.00 

6.67 

66.67 

Jl\i$$!QQ$l 
;o~j.~ 

48.33 

Stormwater Management Bridge Design Architectural Environmental 

15% 15% 5% 5% 

R1 R2 R3 Total R1 R2 R3 Total R1 R2 R3 Total R1 R2 R3 Total 

60.00 75.00 80.00 71.67 - - - 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 

100.00 100.00 85.00 {:;.{9'S;tJol~·; - - - 0.00 - 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 

80.00 - 70.00 50.00 100.00 - 90.00 63.33 - - 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 

80.00 100.00 70.00 83.33 60.00 25.00 60.00 48.33 - - 0.00 0.00 70.00 100.00 90.00 86.67 

60.00 75.00 60.00 65.00 60.00 25.00 50.00 45.00 80.00 50.00 95.00 75.00 - - 0.00 0.00 

50.00 25.00 50.00 41.67 70.00 25.00 60.00 51.67 - 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 

- - - 0.00 70.00 - 70.00 46.67 - - 0.00 0.00 100.00 75.00 100.00 ~~lj1~ff% 
60.00 100.00 30.00 63.33 - 10.00 40.00 16.67 - - 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 

70.00 25.00 60.00 51.67 - - - 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 

80.00 75.00 90.00 81.67 80.00 100.00 80.00 86.67 90.00 50.00 90.00 76.67 - - 0.00 0.00 

100.00 75.00 100.00 91.67 100.00 100.00 90.00 ftl'!J~670~ 100.00 100.00 100.00 ?!i11.®;®31 - - 0.00 0.00 

10.00 25.00 30.00 21.67 20.00 75.00 80.00 58.33 - - 0.00 0.00 - - 0.00 0.00 

J&A HRC HRC NTH 


	agenda1
	agenda2
	agenda3
	agenda4
	agenda5
	agenda6
	Agenda 1-19-2017.pdf
	Pontiac City Council
	STUDY SESSION


